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621.071 687.835 791.375 861.993 961.847
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192,377 — 192,377  (119,726) — 72,651
362,798 (16,380) 346,418 — — 346,418
6,265,779 (16,380) 6,249,399  (119,726) — 6,129,673
1,282,624 — 1,282,624 — — 1,282,624
15,509,768 — 15,509,768 — — 15,509,768
313,133 — 313,133 (103,693) (1,200) 208,240
56,808 (19,694) 37,114 — — 37,114
17,162,333 (19,694) 17,142,639  (103,693) (1,200) 17,037,746
5,115,776 — 5,115,776 — — 5,115,776
135,265 — 135,265  (103,693) (6,000) 25,572
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13,633,732 2,857,159 35,016 16,525,907

5,318,037 — — 5,318,037

392,567 — — 392,567

2,733,114 — — 2,733,114
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1,958,055 (1,958,055) — —
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773,888 1,854,483 2,372,952 4,751,613 9,752,936

177,252 31,456 63,307 74,404 346,419

1,135,270 2,535,730 3,965,186 8,360,508 15,996,694

(274,968) (809,422) (694,560) —  (1,778,950)
286,476 838,315 694,667 — 1,819,458
3,167 (5,243) (25,431) 6,531 (20,976)
7,963 460,853 463,749 2,371,289 3,303,854
(4,030) (432,136) (540,644)  (2,523,637)  (3,500,447)
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2,742 (1,685) (11,629) 16,609 6,037
374,586 440,921 2,621,784 1,632,963 5,070,254
(397,700) (451,873)  (2,751,754)  (1,643,158) (5,244,485)
(31,726) (33,191) (151,791) 6,414 (210,294)
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91/260



21

2017

198.0

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

92/260

2017 31 2018 31
148,572 38,624
1,120,000 1,244,000
1,268,572 1,282,624
180.6



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

22
@
2017 31 31

107,458 148,059

(8,203) (7,934)

27,382 18,980

(66) 518

20,810 21,470
« ) (9,580) (12,494)
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8,158 70,933
C ) 21,348 (2,098)
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1,175,133 1,253,579
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33,575 25,256

8,832 8,453

17,974 16,248

887,024 849,796

17,653,389 19,310,656

2,564,367 2,037,157

9,322,669 11,414,000

3,998,245 3,891,300
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120,000 120,000
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Consalid ated Consalidated
Mote 2018 2017
5'000 5'000
Flmancing revenue and similar revenue 3 1,094,212 1,054,580
Financing expense and 3imilar charges 3 (736,929} {724.409]
Net financing revenue 357483 330,571
Other Income 4 49,669 13,262
Net operating incomae 407,152 353,833
Impalrment of financing assets 9 [13.643) [39,566)
Employee benelits cxpense {111,018) [93.817)
Depreciation, amartisation and wiite-off 5 (18, 980]) [27,382)
IT and commumnicalion exgense [17.348]) [12,937)
Sales and marketing expense [11.25%4]) {9,237)
Occupancy expense (7.227] (6, 70B)
Cther expenses [356,190) [18,179)
Share of net profits of associates accounted for using the
equity method 25 7,934 8,203
Profit belare income tax 209,425 154,212
Income tax expense b [61.366) ik, 754]
Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finance Australia
Limited 148,059 107,458
Other comprehensive income
ferns that may be reciossifed e profit or less
Exchange differences on translation of forei gn
operations 15 1,849 916
Total comprehonsive income attributable to
owners of Toyota Finance Australia Limited 149,908 108,374

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABMN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5 AT 31 MARCH 2018
Consolidated Consalidated
2018 2017
Note 5'000 5'000

Assels

Cashand cash equivalens 21 1,282,624 1,268,572

Loans and receivables Bz 15,509,768 13,857,261

Motor vehicles under operating lease &b 1,253,579 1,175,133

Derivative financial instruments 17 313,133 346,043

Investments accounted for using the equity method 25 67,331 64,439

Intangible assets 27 25,256 33,575

Property, plant and eguipment 16 8,453 8,832

Deferred tax assets 28 16,248 17974

Other assets 23 37,114 35016
Total Assets 18,513 506 16,806 845
Liabilitias

Due to banks and other financial instlutions 10 5115776 5,710,604

Bonrds and commercial paper 11 11,414,000 9,322,669

Derivative financial insruments 17 135,265 152377

Other liabilities 24 470,671 146418
Tatal Liabilities 17,135,712 15,572,068
Net Assets 1,377,794 1,234,777
Equity

Contributed eguity 14 120,000 120,000

R prvas 15 5,274 3415

Retaimed earnings 16 1,752,520 1,111,352
Total Equity 1377794 1234777

The abave consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with thie accompanying noles.

112/260



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 D02 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Batance at 1 April 2017

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive | ncoms
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions wilh owners in thelr capacity as
AWnars:
Dividenn pald 16

Balance at 31 March 2018

Balance at 1 April 2016

Profit for the year
Other comareheniive income
Total comarehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners |n their capacity as
awners;
Bividend paid 16

Balance at 31 March 2017

Attributable to owners of Toyata Finanoe Austraila Limited

Contributed Rotained

equity RosErves carnings Total equity
5000 £'o00 000 4800
120,000 3425 1.111,352 1,234,777
L 148059 148,059

1,848 . 1,549

1,849 148,059 149,908

{6,891] {6,891)

138 5374 1352520 1,377,794
130,000 2,509 1011073 1,133,582
107,458 107,458

916 . 916

516 107,458 108,374

[7.179) {7179}

120,000 3,425 1,111,352 1,234 777

The above consolidated statement of changes In eguity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notles.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Consolldated Consolidated
MNote 2018 a0m7
5000 5000

Cash flows from operating activities

Metcash outllow from lending and other

operating activities (2,144, 9%8) (1,787,198

Interest received 895,573 840,861

Rental income received 343,766 343,157

AED refund - 3,760

Inmerest paid 1354,350) 1395 887)

Incoma taxes paid [B,320) [33.810)
Net cxsh outflow from operating activities 22 {1,305,375) {1,025,117)
Cash flows from investing octivities

Payrments for intangible assets (7.429] {20,057)

Payments for property, plant and equipment (8.220] {7.113)

Proceeds from saleof property, plant and equlpment 4,501 4,560

Dividends received from associate BE91 1179
Met cash outflew from investing activities {3,757} 15431}
Cash flows from financing octivities

Proceeds from bor rowWings 14,369,734 14,776,435

Repayments of borrowings 113,038,705) (13,659,242)

Dividends paid to parent 16 {b,EB91} [r179)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 1324138 1,110,014

Metincrease in cash & cash equivalents 14,052 69,466

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 1268572 1,195,106
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period b5 1,282,624 1,268,572

The above consalidated statement of eash llows should be read in conjunciéon with the accompanylng notes,
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Basis of Preparation

This soction describes the company's significant accounting poficies that relate to the firancial statements and
pates of the accounts. If an accounting policy relates to a particular note, the applicable policy is contained
within the relevant note. This section also shows new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations
and whether they are effective in the current fiscal year or later years.

1. Corporate information

These financial statements cover the consalidated financial statements of the consolidated entity comprising
Toyota Finance Australia Limited, as chief entity, and the entities it controlled at the end, or during the financial
VeI,

Toyota Finanoe Australia Limited {‘the company’] is 2 company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia. Its registered office and principal place of business is:

Toyota Firance Australia Limited
Level 9, 207 Pacific Highway
5T. LEONARDS, NSV, 2065

A description of the rature of the entity’s principal activities is included in the directors’ report on page 2, which
Is not part of the financlal statements,

The linancial stalements were authorised for issue by the directors on 01 June 2018, The company has the power
to amend and reissue the lingncial statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the finsncial statements are set oul belaw.,
These poficies have been conslstently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are lor the consalidated entity consisting of Toyota Finance Australla Limited and its subsidiaries.
[2) Basis of preparation

These general purpase flinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations ssued by the Australian Accounting Stancards Board and the Corporations Act
2001 Toyota Finance Australia Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financlal statements,
Compliance with IFAS

The consofidated finandal statements of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its controdled entities alsa
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Boord (IASE),

Histarical cost convention

These linancal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modificd by the
revaluation of lirancial assets and liabilities at lair value through profit or loss (derivatives).

{b) Principles of consolidation

{i) Subsidiories

The censolidated financial statements incarporate the assets and Rabilities of all subsidiaries of Toyota Finance
Australia Limited (“company” or “parent entity™) as at 31 March 2018 and the results of all subsidiaries for the

10
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Basis of Preparation (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b} Principles of consolidation (continued)

(i} Subsidizries fcontinued)

yiar then ended. Toyold Finanoe Australia Limited and 15 controdled entities together are referred Lo in the
financial statements as the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all entities [including structured entities) owves which the company has control, The company
controls am entity when the company is expased U2, or has rights 1o, variable retuens from it invalvemeant with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 1o direct the activities of the entity,
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They
are deconsolidated fram the date that the control ceases.

The acquisition method of acoounting is used to account for business combinations by the company.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between consolidated entlties are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the parent entity.

fii) Associates

Assoclates are all entities over which the company entity has significant influence but not control, genarably
accompamyng a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. investments in associates are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, atter initially
being recognised at cost.

The company's share of its associates” post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss, and its
shore of post-acquisition movements in reserees |s recognised In other comprebensive income. The cumulative
post-acquisition mowements ane sdjudted against the earrylng amount af the invesdtrment. Dividends recelvable
from associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the carrying
amount of the investment

When the company's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds [ts interest in the assodate, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the consolifated entily does nol recognise further losses, unbess it has
Incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of its associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its assoclates are eliminated o the extent of the
consolidated entity's interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impalrment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary Lo ensure consistency with the policles adopted by the consolidated entity.

{c) Foreign currency translation

{i} Functignal and presentation currency

Items Included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entities are measured wsing the currency
@l the primary economic envirenment in which the entity operates {"the functional currency’). The consolidated

linancial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company's functional and presentation
currency.

1
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Basis of Preparation (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policles [continued)
[c] Foreign currency translation [continued)
[} Functionol and presentation currency (conbinued)

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the fareign
antity from functional to peesentation cutrency is recognised in other comprehensive incame,

ffi} Transections and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and habalities denominated
im foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relates to borrowings are presented In the income statement, within
financing expense and similar charges. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

{d) Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016/191 relating to the “rounding ofi™ of
amounts in the linancial statements. Amounts in the financlal statements have been rounded off in accordance
with the Instrument ko the nearest thousand dellars, or [n certain cases, the nearest dollar,

e} New or revised accounting standards and interpretation not yet odopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations hawe been published that are not mandatory for the 31
tarch 2018 financial year and have not been early adopted by the company.

= AASE 9 Financial Instruments - The new standard simplifies the model for classifying and recognising finandal
instruments and aligns hedge accounting mare closely with commen rck management practices, Changes in
own credit risk in respect of liabilities designated at fair value through profit of boss shall now be presented
within other comprehensive income (1)

AASE 9% new impairment model 15 3 move sway frem AMSE 130's mcurred eredit lois approach Lo an
expected credit loss model, This will likehy result in eardier recognition of impairment losses, and for entities
with significant lending activities, an overhaul of related systems and processes will be needed.

The new standard is reguired for mandatory application for the financial year commencing 1 April 2018, but
Is awallable for early adoption. The company has decided not to early adopt AASE 9.

The company has assessed the impact of the new standard. I does not expedt to have significant impact on
hedge accaunting. classification and measurement aspects. The main impact of the new standard Is on
impalrment, The company estimates that it would have te decrease its credit allowance for receivables by
524,170,000, deferred tax assets would decrease by 57,236,000 and retained earnings would increase by
516,884,000,

12
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Basis of Preparation [continued}

2. summary of significant accounting policies (continuwed)
{e] New or revised accounting standards and interpretation not yet adopted (continued)

= AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - This standard replaces AASE 118, which covers contracts
for goods and services, and AASS 111, which covers construciion contracts.

The new standard Is based on the prindple that revenue Is recognised when control of a good of service
transfers 1o a custamer — 5o the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards.

The new standard is required for mandatory application for the financial year commensing 1 April 2018, The
company has reviewed the new standard and determined that there will be no impact on the financial
statements of the company.

«  AMSH 16 Leoses - AASE 16 will primarily affoct the accounting by lessee and will result in the recognition of
almast all leases on the balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and
financing leases and requires recognition of an asset {the right to use the leased item) and a financial Eakility
to pay rentals for almost all lease contracts. The accounting by lessors, however, will not significantly change.

The new standard s required for mandatory applicatéon for the financial year commencing 1 April 2019, This
revised standard is deemed to have minimal impact on the finandal statements of the company. The
company & reviewing and will determing the full Impact in the coming periods.

13
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This secthon pravides further information about Individual line items in the prafit and loss statement,

including:

» breakdown of financing revenue and expense
ather Income

depreclation, amortisation and write-off
income tax expensa

segment results
relevant accounting policies

" @ ® ¥ @

3. Financing revenue and expense

Fimancing revenue and simiiar revenue

Imterest fvenrug

Rental income on motor vehicles under operating lease
Fes income

Fee expense

Total financing révenue and dmiar reve fue

Financing expense and similar charges

Interest expens e

Met loss Ngain) on translation of fareign currency debt

Falr walwe (gain}floss an derivative financial instruments at fair value
through prafit of loss

Transaction costs

Depreclation expense ¢n assets ender operating lease

Total financing expense and similar charges

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
s'oop 5000
845693 Ba%,211
343,766 303,157
93,968 90,173
[239,015) (227,561)
1084812 1,054,980
74,576 358,142
116,783 {44,552)
153,142) 105,024
18,189 15,852
280,523 279,953
736,929 724,400

Revenue recognition

Revenui is measured at the fairvalue of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue

are net of direct sabes costs and faxes.

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be rellably measured, it is probable
that future ceonomic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met. Revenue is recognised

for the major business activities as follows:

[a) Term Loans and Term Purchase

Interest income arising from term loans and term purchase are recognised over the period of the contract using
the effective interest rate method. Income derived from term leans and term purchase it included in “interest

L (T
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Results for the Year (continued)

3. Financing revenue and expense (continued)
Revenue recognition (contineed)

{b) Leased assets where the consolidated entity ks the lessor
fi} Finonce Leases

Interest income derived from finance leases is recognised over the period of the contract using the effective
interest rate method, Income derived from linance leases is Induded in “interest revenue®,

(i} Operating Leoses

Lease rentals recelvable on operating leases are recognised on a systematic basis over the effective lease term.
Inceme derived from operating leases is included in "rental income on metor vehicle under operating lease”™,
Operating leases had an average term of 43 months in the current period (2017: 42 months).

(e} Fee and commission income and expense

Fee income and expense are an integral part to the effective interest rate of the financial assets or liabilities and
are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income induding payment method fee, service maintenance fee and insurance
distribution fee are recognised as the related services are performed.

Other fee and commission expense relate to ransaction and service fees such as service maintenance expenses
and are recognised as expense in the period the sendces are received,

4, Other income

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
S'0o0 5'000
Net gain on disposal of leased and fixed assets 12,494 9580
Commission and ather i ncomo 17,175 131 682
45,669 23,162

15
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Results for the Year [continued)

5. Depreciation, amortisation and write-off

Consolidsted Consofidated
2018 2017
5'000 $'000
Profit before income tax indudes the following specific expe nses:
Degreciation on progery, plant and equigment
Leasehold I mprovemants 3IEQ 054
Plant and egqulpment 1178 1,181
Motor vehicles 1,664 1,647
Total depreciation 3312 3,782
Ampstisation ond white-off
Cormputer software amartisabion 12,363 15,749
Cormputer software wrlte-off 3,385 TH5
Total amortisation and write-off 15.748 23,600
Total depreciation, amortisation and write-off 18,980 27382

Assels that are subject to depreciation, amortisation and write-off are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment 1oss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to resell and value i use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grauped at the lowest kevels for which there are separately identifiable cash
Inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other asset grougs (cash generating units).

Refer to Mate 26 Proparly, Plant and Fqulpmant & Nate 27 tntangible assets for further infermatson on
depreciation and amortisation.

16
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Results for the Year (continued)
6. Income tax expense

The Income tax expense or revenue for the period ks the tax payable or recelvable on the current period's taxable
Income based on the applicable Income Las rate for each jurisdiction agjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable (o temporary differences and Lo unused Lx losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only IF it is
prabable that future taxable amaunts will be available to utilise those temparary differences and losses,

Deferred tax Babllities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of Investmants in contralled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresecable

Tuture.
Consolidated Consalidated
2018 o7
$'000 $°000
Current tax 39,030 35,173
Dederred tax 1726 {7.907)
Urdes/[Over] provision in prior year 610 1518}
Income tax expens @ attributable 1o continuing operations 61,366 46,754
Deferred income tax expense i ncluded in income tax
CXpEnse Comprises.
Decrease/[Increase) in deferred tax assets 9404 [7.991)
{Decreasel/increase in deferred tax liabilities {11,130) a4
[1,726) [7.907)
Mumerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima
facie tax payable:
Profit from continuing operations before income tax
Expense 209425 154,212
Prima fzcie lax payable @ 30% 62828 46,263
Tan effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)in
caleulating taxable income:
Share of net profit of associate [2380) [2.461)
Sundry items el 1470
B0,756 A7,272
Under/[Over) pravision in prior years 610 |518]
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 61,366 A6,754

1T
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Results for the Year (continued)

6. Income tax expense (continued]

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable rght to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate o the same taxation authority. Current tax aszets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either ta settle en
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
In other comprehensive income or directly in eguity. In this case, the lax is alie recognised in ather
comprehenshe income or directly in equity, respectively.

Tax consolidation legislation

The company and 15 wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consalidation
legrslation from 1 April 2003 in assaciation with sther Australian incorpoarated entities with common ownership.

On adoption of the income tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consalidated group
entercd into an income tax sharing agreement which, in the opinkon of the directors, limits the joint and several
liability for income tax of the consalidated eatity In the ease of o default by the head entity, Toyota Maotar
Corporation Australia Limited.

A p conseguence, the company s no longer subject to Income tax and does not recognise any current tax
balances in it own lingncial statements unbess the Head Entity (Toyota Motor Corparation Austrabia Limited) is
in default of its chligations, or a default is probable, under the Lax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts
relate to taxable income Incurred prior to the implementation of the tax consolidation regime,

The consofidated entity has alsa entered into an Income tax funding agreement under which the consolidated
entity fully compensates the head entity for ary curfent income tax payable assumed and is compensated by
the head entity far any current income tax receivable. The funding amounts are determined by relefence (o the
amounts recognised in the eansolidated entity’s financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement is due upen recaipt of the funding
advice from the head entity, which is issucd as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year, The head
enlity may alis require payment of lnterim funding amounts 1o assist with s obligations to pay Income tax
Instalments.

Dederred tax balances are recognised in the consolidated finandial statements in accordance with WG 1052 Tax
Consolidation Accounting, Amounts receivable or payvable under a tax funding agreement with the Head Entity
are recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as taa-related amounts recevable
and payabie.

Research and development (RED) tax offset

The consolidated entity has claimed historical tax affsets related 1o R & O expenses under the & 0 government
incentive program, The tax benafit from & & D expenses is recognised as a reduction in refated intanginle ret
or operating expenses, depending on the nature of the expenditure,

Mo R & O tax incontives were received this fiscal year, though the consolidated entity intends making a modest
R & O claim for fiscal year 2017 post balance date and will consider its fiscal year 2018 R & D position. Thiz
(including cantinuing adjustments for previous R & O claims), resulted in a decrease of $0.0 mililon (2017: 53.0
million) in total assets and & decrease in net profit after tax of 5016 milllen, consisting of a decrease in general
pxpenses of 50.0 million (2017: 50.8 million), offset by an increase in income tax expense of $0.16 million (2017;
51.9 million].

18
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Results for the Year (continued)
7. Segment results

Management has dejermined the operating segments based on reparts reviewed by the board of directors that
are used 1o make strategic decisions. It categorises the operations of the business into two main business
streams = retail and fleet. Retall segment is comprised of loans and leases to personal and commercial customers
Indluding wholesale finance consésting of loans and bailment facilities to motor wehicle dealerships. Fleet
segment ks comprised of laans and leases 1o small business and fleet customers consisting of medium to large
commercial clients and gowernmant bodies, The company’s business segments eperale in Australia.

2018
Consolidated Retail Fleet Wnallacated Total
5'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Piet Financing Aevenue 249,401 i, 185 45897 357483
Segment operating prafit 199,576 54 961 154,557
2017
Congalidated Ret.ail Feet Unalloeated Taital
5000 51000 5'000 5'000
Mot Financing Revenue 236130 55,254 459 187 330,571
Sagmert operating profit 141,073 51012 153 085

The consolidated entities segment operating profit reconciles to consalidated profit attributable (o owners as
presented In the financial statement as follows:

Consolkdat ed Consolldated
1018 01T
4000 S0
Total reporting segment operating profit 154557 152 085
Share of not profit of equity accounted | nvestment 7934 8,203
Fair value [lass)/gain [38.,611) [T o64)
Other Unalloca ted net income [expense) [13.455) (B.A4121
Profit before income tax 108,415 154,012
Income @) capense [61.966) (46, i 54)
Profit attributable to owners of Toyota Finanome Austrafia Limited 148,059 107458

19
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7. Segment results (continued)
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1018
Assets Retail Flaal Unallocated Tatal
£'000 $000 _$'000 §'000
Segment Ascets 14,058,23¢ 1,105,116 1,750,158 18,513,506
1017
Retall Fleet Unallocated Total
5'000 $'000 5000 500
Segmen: Assels 12,609,384 7433010 LT7d 451 16,806,845

Operating segmants are reported in a manner consistant with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker who is responsible for allecating resources and

assessing poerformance of the aperating segments has been identified as the board of directors.
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Lending

This section focuses on the lending assets of the consolidated entity. Further information ks provided on the
loans and recelvables, and impalrment relating to these financing assats.

8. Financing assets

Consclidated Consofidated
2018 2017
5000 5000
@ Loans ard receivables

Aallment stock 2418150 2,087 247
Term lpans 13,282 984 11511555
Term pufchaie 501,704 E20501
Finamce leases GBS 447 G046 BAD
Gross loans and recebrables 16,578 250 15,226,235
Unearned | ntome {1,324 530 {1,312 483}
Net lnans and receivables [net of unearned income) 15,654,350 14,013,753
Provision for impairment of loans and reccivables did4 5582) (156492 )
Net loans and recehables 15,500,768 13,857 261
Matirity analysls [mot of unoarmed income)
Cusrent
st loans and receivables maturing within 12 months 6,007,158 5,480,620
Man-Cwrent
Met loa rs and receivables maturing Beyond 17 manths 9E47,192 8,533,133

15.654.350 llﬂl:.?ﬁ!
Concentration of exposures

Thie ma jafity of the consolidated entity's loans and receivables are provided to finance the purchase of mokor
vehicles or mator dealership assets,

Consolidated Conpolidated
2018 2017
$'ooo $'000
b. Muotor vehicles under operating lease

A2 cost 1987 844 1.910,1%1
Provision for impai rment loss {23418) |33,433]
Bccumulated depreciation [705847| |701,625]
Total motor wehides under operating lease 1253579 1,175,133
Future minkmum kease receipts under non-cance llable operating leases
Current
Lease receipts due within 12 months 2138803 249 585
Man-Curment
Lease receipls beyond 12 menths 341 345 320,741

580,148 570,327
Mavements in cost, occumuloted depreciation and reserves

Balance at the beginning of peviod, ret of residual value 1,175,133 1,135,139

Additians 606,151 556,971

Mesposals [257.197) [233,954)

Deprociation expense (280,533} {279 853}

Impairment gain/{lois] 10015 13,072}

Balance atend of pesiod, net af residual value 1253579 1,175,133
21
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Lending {continued)
8. Financing assets (continued)

Recognition and de-recognition

Purchases and sales of finoncing assets are recognised on settlement date — the date on which the consolidated
entity scetles the purchase or sale of the assel, Finanging assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through prafit oF loss. Flaangal assets are
derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
iransferred and {he consolidated entity has transferred subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and recelvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
method ca'culation includes the contractual terms of the loan, together with all fees and transaction costs. Retail
and wholesale finance receivabies form part of the loans and receivables in the balance sheet.

Loans with renegotiated terms are accounted for in the same manner taking account of any change to the terms
of the loan,

All loans and recelvables are subject to continuous management review, (o assess whether there is any objective
evidence that the loan is impaired.

Unearned 'ncome is brought to account over the life of the contracts on an affective interest method.

Classification
The consolidated entity classifies its financing assets into the fellowing categories:

{i} Bailment steck

The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance grrangements 1o motor dealers under which vehicles
are gwned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers” premises as ballment stock. There i no unearned
incame on bailment stock,

Whikst thie legal form of the transactions is that the vehicles are owned by the consolidated entity, the substance
of the transactions is that of secured loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as part al
Toans and roceivables’ in the statemant of financial position,

{ti} Term Loans

Term loan is a retail inancing agréement inwhich the terms of the agreament substantially transfer the risk and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the customer, Unearned finance incame 5 the portion of
charges wrliten into finance receivable agreements which will be earned in the luture.

{iii} Leased ossets where the consalidated entity is the lessor

Term Purchose

Term purchase it a lease agreament in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance income is the portion of charges
written into term purchase receivable agreements which will be eamed in the futura.

Finance Lease
Finance lease |s a lease agreement in which the torms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and

rewards incidental to ownership of an asset from the lessor to the lessee. Unearmed finance income is the
portion of charges written into finance receivable agreements which will be earned in the future.
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Lending (continued)

8. Financing assets {continued)
fill) Leased assets where the consalidated entity is the lessor feontinued)

Operoting Lease

Motor vehicles under operating leases are included in Financing Asiets. These are leases in which the terms of
the lease agresment do not whstantially transfer the risks and rewards incidental te ownership of an asset to
the lessee,

Maotor vehicles under operating lease is inclusive of carrying value of vehicles which ceased 1o be rented and are
held for sale amounting e $16.0 millien as at 31 March 2018 (2017: 515.1 milllon).

Assets held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to its
estimated residual value. Depreciation expense is included within financing expense and similar charge.

Concentration of exposures
The majority of the consolidated entity’s loans and recelvables are provided to finance the purchase or lease of
motor vehicles ar motor dealership assets.

Unearned income is camprised of the fal'owing balances:

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
5'000 $°000
Net unamartised deferred revenue and expenses (302 ,629) 1291,252)
Unearned interest ncome on finance feases 44,088 38,628
Unesrned interesl incame on term loans 1583071 1,465,106
Total unearned income 1,324,530 1,212 482

Securitization

Loans and receivables include a portion of the consolidated entity’s term loans and term purchase under
sccuritisation within special purpose entities. The terms of the transfer of these leans do not meet the eriteria
for de-recognition under AASE 139 and are therefore recognised on the consolidated entity's statement of
financial posithon. AASE 10 defines control when an investor s exposed or has rights, to vasiable returns fram
1% invelverment with the investes and has the ability 1o affect those returns through its power over the investes.
The parent entity bears contral over the special purpose vehicles requiring consolidation in the financial
statements.

Ags 21 the end of the reporting petiod, the carrying ameunt of transferred assels held by the special purpose
enlities under securitisation was 53,891.3 million (2017: 53,998, 2 million]

23
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Lending (continued)

9. Impairment of financing assets

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 017
§000 $'000
a. Provision for Impairment of loans and receivables
Opering balance 156492 163,615
Bad debts written off [57.348) {A1,421)
Increase In impalrment loss provision 45,438 54 208
Clasing balanes 144,582 156,452
b. Provision for impalrment of motor vehicles under operating lease
Opening balance 33433 30361
Incfeasef[decrease] in irmpalrment loss provision {10,015} 3072
Clasing balance 23,418 33433
. impalrment loss
Recovery of bad debts written off [25,780) [17.804)
Increase in impalrment loss prevision 315423 57370
Total impalrment loss 13,643 19,566

Sigmificant accounting estimate and fudgement

The consofidated entity appiies significant estimates and assumptions to make ressonable judgements on
carrying amounts of financing assets, One area that invohves a high level of judgements or complexity of
estimates and assumptions is impairment of loans and recelvables and moter vehicles under operating lease.

Collectability of financing assets is reviowed on an gngoing basis, Financing assets which are known to be
unceliectible are written off. A provision for impairment of financing assets Is established when there Is objective
evidence that the cansolidated entity expects not to be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the contract. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluging future credit losses that have not been incuried)
discounted at the financlal asset's original effective interest rate {i.e., the eflective interest rate computed at
initial recogniton). The amount of the loss B recognised in profit or loss.

24

129/260



Funding

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

In this section, the focus is on debt funding of the consofidated entity, Further information is provided an

debt lssuance and credit facllities available to manage liquidity risk.

10. Due to banks and other financial institutions

Consolidated Congolidated
2018 2017
5000 57000
Banks and other financial institulions 5115776 5,318,037
Affiliated entity - 392,567
Total due to banks and ather financial institutions 5,115.776 5,710,604
Maturity analysis
Current
Banks and other financial institutions 2.315,164 1,873,014
Affiliated entity - 392,567
Total Current 2,316,164 2,265,581
Non-curment
Banks and okther financial inskitutions 2,799,612 3,445,023
Total Non-currant 2,793,612 3,445,023
Tatal due to banks and other finandal institutions 5,115,776 5,710,604

Included in the “Due o banks and ather finandal institutiens” 15 securilised debt of $3,078.6 million as at 31
March 2018 (2017: 53,146.2 million] representing the value of term loans held by the externzl parties in the
special purpose enlities. The speclal purpose entities bsswed Interest-bearing notes to the third parties
amounting to 53,078,6 million as at 31 March 2008 (2017: $3,146.2 million]. The company helds the balance of
the sperial purpose entities of 5812.7 million as at 31 March 2018 (J017: S852.0 million]. 53,8913 miflion loans
and receivables are pledged as collateral for the senior notes under securitisation as at 31 March 2018 (2017

53,9982 milkion).

The intarest payable on the secured notes as at 31 March 2018 amounted Lo 2.6 millkon {2017: 52.3 million]

and Is incleded in "Accrued Interest Payable®.
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Funding (continued)

11. Bonds and commercial paper

Consolidated Consolidated

1018 1017

$'000 $'000
Domestic commarcial paper 1,134,721 1,007 307
Domestic medium term nate 1,173,093 995,474
Euro commercial paper 1,358 690 1,725,807
Ewro medium term note 6307222 5,590,081
US Commercial paper 1,440,265 -
Total bonds and commercal papers 11,414,000 9,322 665
Maturity analysis
Cuerrenit
Bonds and commercial papers 6.585.417 4817684
Man-current
Bands and commercial papers 4,828,583 4,504,985
Total bands and commerdal papers 11,414,000 9,321,669

Bonds ang commercial paper are initially recognised at falr value, net of transaction costs incurmed and are
subseguently measured 2t amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount i$ recognised in the mcome statement over the period of the bonds or commercial
paper using the effective interest method

Trangaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial liability are induded in
the initial recognition of the financial instruments.

Helders of any sutstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other investment securities and commeecial papers
summarised in the tables above have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by lapanese law, one
between Toyota Motor Corporation and Tayata Financial Services Corparation dated 14 July 2000, and the ather
belween Toyota Financlal Services Corporation and the company dated 7 August 2000.

12. Securitisation and transferred assets

In the narmal course of business, the consolidated entity entess into transactions by which it transfers financial
assets 1o Special Purpose Entities [SPES), These transfers do not give rise to de-recognition of those financial
assets for the consolidated entity.

Securitsalion

Term loans securitised under the company's securitisation programs are equitably assigned (o bankruptcy
rempte SPEs. The consolidated entity Is entitled to any residual income of the securitisation program after all
payments due Lo investors have been met. In addition, where derlvatives are transacted betweon the 5PE and
the parent, such thai the parent retains exposure to the variability in cash Mows from the transferred term boans,
the bpans will continue to be recognised on the parent’s balance sheet, The investors have full recourse only (o
the verm lpans segregated into the SPEs.

26

131/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Funding (continued)

12. Securitisation and transferred assets (Continued)

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
5'000 5000

Carrying amount of transferred assels 3851300 3,998,246
Careying amount of associated liabilities 3078619 3,146,237
Net position for carryiing amount B12,681 B52,009
Falr value of transferred asscts 4,244,455 4389408
Failr value of associated liabilities 3101812 3.167,129
Net position for falr value amount 1,142,683 1,222,179
13. Credit facilities

Consolidated Consolidated

2018 2017
5000 5000

Amaount svadable:
Bonds, commercial papers and term loans 19,410,742 17,419,505
Money market 850,000 587.500
Bank averdralt 4,000 4,000
Securitisation
Senior Note 4,080,000 4,080,000
-Mezzanine Note 1,120,000 1,120,000
Amount utilised:
Bonds, commercial papers and term loans 13,506,153 11,936,489
Maoney market
Bank overdralt -
Securitisation
-seniar Note 3078619 3,146,237
‘Mezrzanine Note B12 682 852,009
Amount not utilised:
Bonds, commercial papers and torm loans 5504550 5483416
Money market B50,000 387,500
Rank overdraft #0000 4,000
Securitisation
Senior Mote 1001381 933,763
“Mezzanine Nole 07318 267991

Medium term note and commercial paper programs

Medium term notes and commercial paper programs allow the company 1o issue medium term notes and
commercial paper in either Australian or overseas markets up to a total of 514.3 billion (2007: £12.2 billion).
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Funding (continued)
13. Credit facilities {continued)
Madlum term note and commercial paper programs (contmued]

In the current financial year Toyota Financlal Services Corporation allocated 52.00 billion DMTN facility (o the
company (2017: $2.0 ballion). Subject to meeting conditions prescribed in the program documentation, the
company can |ssue commercial paper and medium term notes (o purchasers at any tme.

Credit support agreement

Holders of deit securities issued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed
by Japanese law, one between Toyota Motar Corporation (“TMC") and Toyota Financizl Senvices Corporation
[“TFSC™) datad 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the company dated 7 August 2000 (together, the
“Credi Support Agreements”].

Securities with respect to which a Trusiee is apgounted

The Trustee, Unian Bank of California M.A., will have the right to dlaim in favour of the helders of such securities
directly against TF5C and TMC to perform their respective obligations under the Credit Suppoert Agreerminls by
making a written ciaim together with a declaration to the effect that such holders will have recourse to the rights
given under the Credit Support Agreements. If TFSC andfor TMC receive such a clalm from the Trustee, TFSC
and/or TRC shall indemnify, without further action or formality, the nolders against any loss or damage resulting
from the failure of TFSC and/or TMC to perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support
Agreements. The Trustee may then enfarce the indemnity directly against TFSC and/or TMC in favour of such
holders. If the Trustee, having become bound to proceed directly against TFSC and/far TMC, falls to do so within
a reasonable period therealter to protect the interests of the holders of such securities, and such farlure shall
be continuing, the halders of such securities may themselves take the actions mentioned above.

Securities with respect to which @ Trustee s not oppoinled

Hedders of such securities will hine the right to daim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform thelr respective
obligatlons under the Credit Support Agreaments by making a wiitten claim together with a declaration to the
effect that the holder will have recousse to rights given under the Credit Suppor Agreements. T TFSC and for
TME receive such a claim from any holder of such securities, TFSC andfor TMC shall indemnily, without any
further action or farmality, the halder against any loss or damage resulting from the faflure of TESC and/for TMC
to perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreemenis. The holder of such
securities who made the claim may then enforce the indemunity directly against TFSC and/or TMC.

In consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, o Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between
TFSC and the company as at 30 March 2001, The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the company will
pay 1o TFSC 2 fee eguivalent to a percentage of the weighted average outstanding amount of the company’s
medium term notes and commercial paper that have the benefit of the Credit Support Agreements,

Thee directars are mot aware of any instances of a written claim and declaration wnder the terms of the Credit
Support Agreements, in conmection with the company's outstanding medium term nates and commercial paper,

Maney market facilities
The company has access ta 50.55 billon of uncommitted and $0.3 billion of committed money market facilities

as &t 31 March 2018 {2017: 50.49 billion uncommitted and $0.1 billion committed] respectively provided by
various financial institutions. The company alse has access to.a Master Credit Facility as disclosed below.
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Funding (continued)

13, Credit facilities (continued)
Master credit facility (MCF)

364 Day Credit Agreement, Three Year Credit Agreement ond Five Year Credit Agreement

The MCF between the company and other Toyota affillates was renegatiated in November 2017 where a U5S55.0
billign 364-day syndicated bank crogil facility, 2 US55.0 billion three yvear syndicated bank credit facility and a
UIS55.0 biltion fve year syndicated bank credit facility, expiring in November 2018, 2020, and 2022, respectively,
were renawed

The ability to make drawdowns is subject to cavenants and conditions customary in transactions of this aature,
including negative pledge provisions, coross-default provisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers
and sales of assets. These agreements may be used for general corporate purposes and none were drawn upon
as at 31 March 2018, The company is in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the eredit agreements
described abowe.

Bank overdraft

The Bank overdralt is an unsecured 54.0 million facity as at 31 March 2018 {2017: 54.0 million). interest is
charged ot prevailing market rates, The bank overdralt is payable on demand and subject to annual review.

29
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Capital management

This section covers the capltal structure of the consolidated entity.

14. Contributed equity

Consoldated Consolidated
018 w017
5’000 $'000
Ordinary shares fully paid 120,000 120.000

At 31 March 2018 there were 120,000,000 ordinary shares fully paid,

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the consolidated
entity in propertion to the number of and amounts pakd on the shares held.

©n a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeling in person of by proxy, is entitled to
oni vote, and upon a pall each share |s entitled to one vote.

15. Resaries
Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
5000 $'000
Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at 1 April 3425 2,509
Met xchange differences on translation of foreign 1849 916
Balance at 31 March 5,274 3415

Forgign currency transietion resene

Exchange differences arising on translation of investment accounted for using the equity method is taken to the
foreign currency transtation reserve, The reserve is subsequently recognised in profit and loss when the net
investment is disposed of.
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Capital management [continued)

16. Retained Earnings

Consalidated Consalidated
2018 2017
$'000 5'000
Balance at 1 April 1,111,352 1,011,073
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 148,059 107458
Total available for appropriation to owners of the parent 1255411 1,118,531
Dividends paid [6,891) {1179}
Balance at the end of the period 1,252,520 1,111,352
Divide nds
Fully-franked final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018
of 5.7 cents (31 March 2017:6.0 cents) per fully paid share 6,331 1179
Total dividends pald 64591 7178

Under the income tax consolidaticn regime, the franking sccount balance of the company a3 at 1 April 2003 was
permanently transferred to the Head Entity of the consolidated tax group. The company ceases o have a
franking account during the time it remains a member of the consolidated group.

The income Lax consolidation rules do permit the company Lo pay a franked dividend Lo its sharcholder with the
Head Entlty's franking account bearing a reducticn for the frankieg credit attached o the dividend. Dividends
paid during the year ended 31 March 2018 were fully franked.

Prawision it made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the end of the year but not distributed
at the end of each reparting peviod

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final Tully
franked dividend of 35 cents per fully paid ordinary share (2017 - 0 cents), The amount of the proposed dividend

expected to be paid on or before 30 June 2018 out of retaired earnings at 31 March 2018, but not recognised
as @ liability at year end, is $82,037,100.

3
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Financial instruments and risk

This section covers the financial instruments held by tha consolidated entity including derivative and nan-
derivative finaneial instruments and financlal risk management infarmation.

17. Derivative financial instruments
Consolidated Consolidated

2018 2017
5'000 £'0:00
ASLOTS
Interest rate swap contracis 18,900 55,405
Cross CUFrency swap contracis 236,583 284,167
Forward foreign exchange contracis 47,817 6,864
Derivative inancial instrument assets 313,300 346436
Less: Bilateral eredit valuation adjustment (167} (393}
Total derivative financial instrument assets - held at fair value 313,133 346,043
Liabilities
Interest rake swap contracts 50,147 71,237
Crogs currency Swap contracts 84,322 BO,137
Forward forelgn exchange contracts 796 41,003
Total derivative financial Instrument Nabidlithes - held at fair value 135,265 192,377
Current Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative Finoncial Assets 145,962 105,448
Derivative Financial Uabilities 32,231 92,076
Nen-current Derivathve Financial instruments
Defivative Finanelal Axgets 67,171 140,595
Derivative Financial Wabllities 103,034 100,301

Measurement

Derivative fimancial asset and llability are initially recognised at fair value on the date a defivalne contract is
entered inlo and are subsequently remeasured to their Tair value at the end of each reporting period, The
derivatives have not been designated as hedging instruments; consequently, changes in the falr value of
derivatives are recognised immediately in profit or loss as interest expense and similar chatges. This may, (o the
extent that they are not offset by the translation of the [bems economically hedged, introduce volatility in the
consolidated entity's profil of loss and produce anomalous results.

Foir value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on
guated market prices at the end of the reporting period, The quoted market price used for financial instruments
held by the company is the mid-price.

The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined using valuation technigues, The fair valuve of interest rate Swaps and cross currency swaps are
caleulated as the presant value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of foreign exchange contracts
is determined using the forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial instruments and risk {continued)
17. Derivative financial instruments [continued)

Bilateral credit valugtion edjustments

The credit valuation adjustment is an adjustment to the falr value of the derivative Instruments to account far
the counterparty credit risk [COR), It is a price of CCR which depends on the counterparty credit spreads and
market factors that drive the derivative values,

Significant eccaunting estimare

The corsolidated entity applies significant estimates and assumptions to make reasonable judgements on
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. One area that involves a high level of estimates or complexity of
assumptbons & derivative financial instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair values, by valuation method, The different levels
are defined as follows:

Level 1@ guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for [dentical assets or llabilities

Level 2 inputs other than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly {i.e- as prices] or indirectly (Le. derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the assel or lability that are not based on observable market data

The consolidated entity's financial instruments that are measured and recognisad at fair value are derivative
assets and derivative liabfities used for hedging (Le. interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward
exchange contracts). While these instruments are used for economic hedging, the consolidated entity does not

apply hedge accaunting,
A5 AT 31 MARCH 2018 Lewvel1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Tatal
$'000 5'000 $'000 5'000
Deriwative finandal assets
thraugh profit ar loss
Derivatives used Tor economic hedging
Fareign exchange contracts A4TRLT 47817
Interest rate swaps - 165483 - 165,483
Less: Bilateral CWVA - |167] - |167}
Total financial assets 313,133 313,133
Derivative financial Rabilities
through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Fareign exchange contracts - 96 - a6
IFbirest rabe swaps - 134 469 - 134,469
Total financial Nabilltkes . 135,265 - 135265
33
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

17. Derivative financial instruments [continued)

Faoir volwe higrarchy (continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Lewel3 Tatal
5'000 s'ooo £'000 5000
Derivative finandal assets
through profit or boss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Forel gn exchange contracts - 6BES : 6BES
Inlenest rate swaps - 339,571 : 335,571
Less: Bilateral CVA . {333} : {393}
Total financial assets = 346,043 . 346,043
Derivative financial liabilities
through profit or loss
Derivatives used for economic hedging
Foreign exchange contracts - 41,003 - 41,003
Interest rate swaps 151,374 - 151,374
Total finsncial labilities - 192,377 192,377

18. Non-derivative financial instruments

Firir volue measurements

Thie fair value of financial assets and financial [iabilithes must be estimated for recognition and measurement or
for disclosure purposes. Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for financial
Instruments.

The tabie below summarkses the carrying amounts and the falr values of those finandal assets and labilities not
presonted an the consolidated entity’s balance sheet at fair value,

Consofidated Caonsalidated
2018 2017
Carfying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Ramount Value
o o0 #oo0 5000

Finandial Assets
Loand and recelvabl e 16,763,347 18,171 841 15.032.354 164347756
Finandal Liahillties
Due to banks and other financial institutions 5115776 5,163,646 5710604 5,761,329
Bands and commarCinl papee 11,414 000 11,528 501 %.332,669 9481152

16,519,776 16,652,148 15,033,173 15,242,481

The carrylng amaunts of trade receivables and payables are assumed 1o approximate thelr fair vatues due to
their short term nature. The fair value of the loans and receivables is estimated at portfolio leved by discounting
the contractual cash flows using current lending rates. The fair value af financial liabilities s estimated by
digcount-ng the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the group
for similar financial instruments, The fair value of current borrowings approximates the carrylng amount, as the
impact of discounting is not significant,
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
19. Offsetting financial assets and financial llabilities

Finangial assets and liabiities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the consclidated entity currently has a legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amounts, and
thera ks intentlon to settle on @ net bas's or realise the asset and settie the lability simultaneously. The
consolidated entity has akso entered into arrangements that do not meel the criteria for offsetting but still aliow
foor the related amounts to be sog off in certain circumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of defaull.

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offsat, or subject to enforceable
master netling arrangemenis but not offset, as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, The column ‘net amount’
shows the impact an the contolidated entity’s statement of finandal pesition i sot-off rights were exercived.

Effets of offseiiing on the stsement of finanoal poution Bolsted amounts not offest

(Erows amownts  Nel @amosnts dmounis
set-oflin ihse presented in sulsjedt 1o

£l pof  Ake stal AL RS
firsaneish af Eakndial netting Cash

G amauntd poit) P g Collseral Net Esour
018 4000 ad 000 7000 040 saod
Financial assets
Canh and cath egavalerds (b} 1282634 1.IB2 624 . - 1182624
Logne ard recel vables 15 509,768 - 15500, 260 - - 15500, ThRE
Cerivalive financial instruenents (5] 313,133 313133 103 &53) (12007 208240
Other assets (a) 56,808 [i=EoL) 37,114 " - 17114
Teaal !JEE!EB IIWJ IJ_.I..-I!,EIE_!;' ilﬂ!é!]l M 17,037,746
Finangil Kabilg ey
Bue o s B ather BI () 5115776 = 511597 = - 5115706
Beerivations limancisl | vitruments (8] 135,265 - 135,265 |E03503) |, 0T I5STE
e liahalaries (&) ABOARS (1R EDEY ATOATE - ATLATE
Tolal S a1 ADE (15408} 5,121 () EE— T S811010
FLE
Ferancial srpety
Cazhand cash equivalents |k) 1, 85T * LIGRSTE * 4 1LAGEST
Loans and recesvadles 13Esr T 14,857 261 - . 13 H87 191
Dhetiwakive finarcial inszrumesis () 346 043 EL T ] [118, 728 . 238317
Db aaaats |a) El.ﬁq i1 B.iﬁ JEIG - = 35016
ot 1351378 __ (16300) _ 15506393 (14736 15387166
Finsnaal liskelt ey
Dhum o hanks & ome A |B) £ 710,604 . & TL0E0L . . & 10808
Deriwative inarcial instruments {o) 191,377 = 192377 1119, 78] L 71651
Sithi lakalities (2] 352 156 {162800 46418 - : LR
Toeal Ei !! Ii!g & ill!eE = E&ED&I
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Finaneial instruments and risk (continued)
19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities {Continued)
{a} Offsetting arrangements

Other assets ond liobilities

On the whalesale dealer statements, moaathly financing and sther recoivables fram dealerships are offset against
manthly commissions and cther payables to dealerships, The amounts are settied and presented net in the
statement of financial position.

{b) Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements = not currently enforceable

Derivative transactions with counterparties are cowered by I50A agreements and term loans and cash deposits
are covered by standard Ioan agreemaents. Under the tesms of these arrangaments, saly upan an event of default
or ratings downgrade to a certain level, the net position owing/receivable to a select counterparty in the same
currency will be taken as owling and all the relevant arrangemenls terminated. As the consolidated entity neithar
presently have a legally enforceable right of set-off nor have intention te exercise the right, these amount have
not been offset in the statement of financial pesition, but have been presented separatoly in the table above.
Collateral is also posted daily in respect of certain derivatives transacted with counterparties covered by
activated Cradit Support Annex for Variation Marg:n agreements,

20. Financial risk management

The consalidated entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk
and interest rate risk). credit risk, liquidity risk and residual value risk, The conalidated entitys averall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of finandlal markets and used vehicle markets and secks
to manage potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the consolidated entity.

The consolidated entity does net enter into or Irade financial instruments, indiding derivative financgial
Instruments, for speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage the consolidated
entily's exposure to currency risk and interest rate risk. The residual value risk of the consolidated entity arises
mainly from receivables under operating lease and loans with guaranteed future value.

Risk management Is carreed gul by various committees and departments based on charbers approved by senior
management in accordance with the company’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework. These include:

Engerprise Risk Manogement

Enterprise RSk Management process is established with the purpose of driving an appropriate risk culture across
the enterprise and enabling the organisation 10 achieve its business goals. This function is discharged by Senior
Executive Team [SET)

Asset & Liokility ond Pricing Commiltes
The Asset & Liability and Pricing Committee meets to:

= proactively and collaboratively manage and monitor the interest rate and liguidity risks of the
contelidated entity; and

= actively assess new business margins in connection with volume and interest rale requirements, and a
changing interest rate and competitor environment.

The consolidated entity’s Treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Treasury
department implements the consolidated entity’s policies to manage the consolidated entity's foreign currency
risk, Interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and eredit risk with banks and other financial intermediaries.

36
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Finandial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit Risk Commifiae

The Credit Risk Committes is responsible far the risk assessment, ongoing management, collection, enfarcement
and write-off of monies lent by the company. The committes ensures that the core credit operations of the
company are aligned with the corporate goals and objectives. its focus is on the credit risk assessment and an
oangalng evaluation af eredit granted te retall custamers, dealer whalesale and fleat credit.

Residuol Volwe Commitles

The Residual Value Committes undertakes to measure and assess residual values on assets based on best
practice and eritical variable infermatlon such as used ear market dynamies, economic conditions, governmental
policies/regulations, the credit market and the conditions of assets under lease/with guaranteod future value,
Itreports all matters with potential impact on residual value of assets and all other matters which would mitigate
potential residual value risks (o the consafidated entity.

Audit Cormmities

The Audit Committee is tasked to assist the Board of Drectors of the company and managemaent in the exercise
of its owersight responsibilities over the systems of Internal control, Internal audit activities and ensuring a
comstant communication amongst the Audit Commities, management, external audit and internal audit.

Compilience Commitiee

The Complance Committee is responsible for the establishment, publication and maintenance of the
Compliance Frarmework to manage the consolidated entity’s compliance with all the laws, regulations and codes
of practice that apply Lo the business and the maintenance of the compary’s ACL and AFS Licenges.

Internal Awdit

The Internal Audit Department provides independent, objective assurance and consuiting activities designed to
add value and Improve the consalidated entity’s operations. |t assists management in [dentifying and mitigating
risks, and recognising keizen opportunities through its rewvicw of business proceises, systems, contrels,
emvironment and activities,

Product Commifes

Thie Product Committes is esiablished o review new and existing products and senvices Including the
development of the company's market place strategy lor product and service development and roadmap
considerations.

(a) Market risk

(i}  Fareign exchange risk
The consolidated entity operates In international capital markets to obtain debt funding te support its
garning isdts, Transncliong may be deneminated In foreign curiencies, exposing the consol dated entity
1o foreign exchange risk arising from varigus currency oxposures,

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currency that is not the
entity's functional currency and net invesiments in lorelgn cperations, The risk ks measured using debt
maturity analysis.

Managerment has set up 2 polcy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its forelgn exchange risk
against its functienal currency. The consodidated entity is required 1o econamically hedge 100% of its

foreign exchange risk al the time of debt issuances. Derivative financial instruments are entered info by
the consolidated entity to hedge Its exposure to foreign currency risk, including:

k¥
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market risk [continued)
i} Foreign exchenge risk fcontinued)

»  Forward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign eurrency risk arising on the issue of commercial
paper in foreign currencies and affilisted entity loan; and

®  Cross curtency swaps to manage the lorelgn currency and interest rate risk assoclated with foregn
currency denominated medium term notes.

The consalidated entity’s nel exposure to forelgn currency risk at the end of the reporting period enoed
31 March 2018 is immaterial. There has been no change in this position when compared to the reporting
peried ended 31 March 2017

fii}  Cash flaw and fair walue interest rate rigk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fuctuate because of changes In markel interast rates. The consolidated entity is exposed to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates as it borrows and lends funds at both floating
and fixed Interest rates. Dervative financial Instruments are entered (nto by the conzolidated entity to
econamically hedge its expasure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, including:

#  Fed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolicated
entity's earning assets. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting loans and
receivables from lxed rates 1o Noating rates; and

- Fived-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated
entity’s functional currency denominated fixed rate medium berm notes and bank loans. Such interest
rate swaps have the econamic effect of converting borrowings from fized rates to floating rates; and

= Cross currency swaps to manage the forelgn currency and Intefest rate risk associated with fareign
currency denominated medium term notes, US commercial paper and bank loans. Such cross currency
swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from foreign denominated fixed or floating
rates to functional currency Tloating rates,

Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified
intervals [mainly quarterly], the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts
caloulated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the cross currinty swaps, the
consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign currency principal
and fixed (or Nloating) rate interest amounts, and funetional currency arincipal and Moating rate interest
amounts calculated with reference to the agreed functional currency principal amount.

Thie consolidated entity’s policy is to maintain most of its debl exposure in its functional currency at floating
rale, using Interest ralé swaps or ofass cUrrency Swaps 1o achievg this whin Recessany.

The following table details the consolidated entity's exposure to Interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting
period
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Financial instruments and risk {continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market risk [continued)

fii} Cash flow and foir value interest rate risk fcontinued)

2018 Warlable Fised Hon
Consolidated Imterest Irtarest Imterest
Rate Rate Bearing Total
$1900 1000 5000 so00 |
Operating Lese receivable - 12769497 - 1,276,997
Fimandal Assels
Cash and ligud assety 1182 624 N - 1382 624
Laany and recsiva bled 3 EBO.G59 117736593 - 15654352
Iivieresl rahe swiaps 10,300,250 {10,200,250) : .
Other assets . 37,114 37114
Total financial assets 15363 533 2 850,440 37,114 |a,.:51,u§'r_
|Fimancial Liabillties . - -
Banks & ather finantial institutions 5115776 - 5115776
Loands (ram related company - .
Camrmarcial papars EL-EEEL] . - 3933686
Bdesd b Sprm nofes B97 525 582, TED = TABD314
Crois Currenty Swaps 2,272,801 {2.272.601) - -
Irberest rate swaps 4235900 1a.235,900] - -
Diher liabilities - - ATOATL 470671
Total financial [labilities 16455 4588 Ta. 188 aA70,671 17,000,447
Hot Fnancal Assets/Uabilitles {1,091 955)] 2aTe52 | qasasem] 13so640 ]
m7 Warishle Fixgd LEL
Consolidated Interest Interest Interest
Rata Rata Baasing Tatsd
5o Aod 000
Qperating Lease receivable 1,208 566 - 1,208 566 |
Finandsl Arsets
Cash ang liguld assets 1,168 572 = 1,268,572
Enans and receivables 3,393 910 10,619,843 - 14,013,753
Fnieredt rabe swapl 8,571,250 18,571,250 s s
ey Asiets - . 15016 15016
Total Rinancial siset 13 633 732 1,E5T.159 35 016 16,525 507
Firansial Lisbilities
Banks & otheér finandal FAst lutiond 5.218.037 - 5.318.037
Lzans fram related company 392 567 - 392 567
Commercial papers 2733114 B - 2733114
el um Berm nakes 1,356,992 5152563 - 6,585,555
Crass cufrency Swaps 1,958,055 1,958 055) -
Interes T rate fvans 3,764,504 {3, T, 200) . .
Cribier [abilities - - Ji6ALH J4EA LR
Total financial liebilides 15,563,665 1530,337] 346418 15373651
Net Finandal Assets)Liabilities 1530833 5 387 551 11402 1146216
38
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management {continued)
fifl)  Sensitiuity
The consolidated entity's financial results afe exposed 1o iNterest rate mMovements in the market. Shown below

I5 the potential impact of a 1% increase in Interest rate on the consolbdated entity’s pre-tax profits for the next
twehie months. A 1% deerease in interest rate has an opposite impact of the same amount

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 017
5000 $'000
Interest rates = increase by 100 basis points (3,314} {1,250)

{b)  Credit risk

The consolidated entity takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will cause a financial
lass for the consolidated entity by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from
lending activities for financing assets, funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial Institutions and derivative financial instruments.

fi)  lending activities
The consolidated entity’s financing assets are exposed to three areas: retall, fleet and wholesale.

Retall
The retail portfolio is the largest area which comprises a range of loans and receivables from individual
consumers and small business,

Figet
Thee Neet portfolio comprises a range of loans and receivables and motor vehicles under operating lease from
small (o large commercial clients and government bodies. It also indudes novated leasing customers.

Credit risk arising from Individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of credit
scaring and manual underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfolio diversification beth
demographically and geographically, Creit risk arising from fleet clients is managed by imposition and review
{at a minimum annually} of credit limits to ensure fleet clients have the capacity (o setile financial commitments.
Collaterad is also used to secure funds advanced. The principal coflateral types are:

* inthe case of term purchase and lease products, title of the beased vehicle is retained until final setthement

under the terms of the sgreement;
= Charges over vehicles in the case of loan produwcts.

Repossessed vehicles are sold using various channels as soon as practicable, with the proceeds vsed to reduce
the outstanding indebtedness.

40
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Financial instruments and risk {continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)
{b] Credit risk {continued)
i} Lending acthities fcontinwed)

The following table shows the past due exposure on loans and receivables which includes unimpaired and
impaired amounts.

Consolldated Consolidated

2018 017
$000 $'000
Retail past dus expasure
30 days and below 1,235 880 346,481
31-60 days 124,752 113,386
61-90 days 42,748 44,905
over 90 days 48.110 63,601
1,451,490 568377
Fleet past due exposure
30 days and below 286,260 127392
31-60 days 13,003 9,238
B1-90 days 2478 4,230
ower 90 days 6,550 3,588
308,331 144,448
Total past dug enposure 1,759,821 812,825
Impaired loans and receivables:
Retail 130,713 146,638
Flest 1B, 407 24,407
Total impaired loans and receivables 145,120 171,045

The conselidated entity uses provisioning models to assess the credit quality of financing assets and estimates
provision for amounts not collectibie. Amaounts not provided for are deemed collectible.

Whalesale
The wholesale portfolio includes lloor-plan finence to motor dealers for new and used motor vehicle stock
under either:
* A bailment facility, under which motor vehicles are bailed by the company to a dealer, and the
company retains ownership of each vehicle until the dealer sells it to a customer; ar
= A chasge plan facility, under which the company provides finance to a dealer for purchase of moter
wehicles which are charged bo the company as security.

In addition to the floor-plan facilities, the wholesale portfelio also includes term loans to dealerships to finance
properly and premises, and revahving working capital lsans, These loans are typically secured by general
security agreements, real property morgages and personal guarantees,

Due to the nature of these facilities there |s a concentration in the meotor vehicle dealership industry, with the
risk spread across markel locations throughout Australia. In addition (o the callateral security oblained, credit
risk is managed through regular auditing of the dealerships vehicle inventory, monthly monitoring of financial

performance and ongoing annual reviews

The cencentration of credit risk in relation 1o the two operating segments is reflected n note 7.
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Financial instrurnents and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

[b) Credit risk {continued)

fif]  Funding activities

The consobidated entity's Treasury Department manages oredit risk through the use of external rating such as
Standard and Poor's rating or equivalent, counterparty diversification, monitaring of counterparty financial

condition and ensuring master netting agreements are in place with all derivative counlerparties.

The below table shows the percentage of the conselidated entity's money market deposits and derivatives
relating to funding acthvities, based on the Standard & Poor's rating.

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017

] %
Ah. 10 14
A 4] ElY]
h 90 56

The maximum expasure o credit risk at the end of the reporting perisd, without taking inte account collateral
obtained, is the carnying amount, net of any allowance for doubiful debts or impairment, of each financial asset,
including desivative financial instrumenits, In the statement of financial position.

lc) Lguidity risk

Liguidity risk ks the risk that the consolidated entity Is unable to meel its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be
failure to meet obligations to repay creditors and fullil eommitmenis to lend, The consalidated entity, in the
normal course of business, requires substantial funding ta support the level of its earning assets and working
capital requirements, and consequently is exposed to liquidity risk.

The liguidity management processes carried out by the Treasury Departmant includes:

«  Daytoday funding managed by monitoring existing and future cash flows 1o ensure that
reguirements can be mat. This incledes planning replenishment of funds before they mature orfand
borrowed by custorners. The consolidated entity maintains an active presence In domestic and
international capltal markets Lo enable Lhis Lo hagpen;

*  Wonitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; and

" M aintaining backup credit facilities.

{i] Financing arrongements
The consolidated entity utdises various financing arrangements such as commercial paper, medium term notes,

bilateral bank loans and securitisation to meet Bquidity reguiremaents, It has access 1o 3 wide array of eredit
facilities to manage liguidity risk [refer to Note 13),

42
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Uguidity risk [continued|
(i} Matwnty of financial lnbilities

The tables below analyses the consalidated entity’s financial linbilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on their remaining contractual maturity as at the reporting period for all:

= non-derivative financial lkapilities, and

» net and gross settled derivative financial instrumants for which the contractual maturities are escential far
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

Thie amaunits in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate swaps, the cash flows
have been estimated wsing forward Interest rates applicable a1 the end of the feporting pariod.

1018 <1 1-3 312 1-5
Consolidated Manth Months Manths Years Total
$'000 $'000 000 5'000 $'000

|Non-derbvatives
Banks & other financial instutions 169,211 402,776 1,848,700 | 2HGE 428 5,289,115
Bands & commercial paper 843050 | 1824048 | 4112752 5113547 | 11898697
Other llabilites 296,022 31448 62550 BO,610 AT0ETL
Total non derlvatives 1313283 | 2258273 | 6024042 | B0GI885 | 17658481
Darivatives

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

- Bought currency 1163,131) (562,943} |{604,673] «| (1,330,753}
-5old currency 151,777 542,395 594,481 -1 1,288,653

Interest Rate Swaps 27142 [1.685) {11,629) 16,600 6,037

Cross Currency Swaps

- Payleg 374,585 440921 | 2521,784 | 1632963 | 5070254

= Receive log [397,7001| (451,873)| (2,751,754]| {1,543,158)| (5.244,485]
Total derivatives [31.726) {33.192)]  (151.791] 6414 {210,254]
Total 1281557 | 2235082 | 5871251 | 80692595 | 17 k]

43
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Financial fisk management {continued)
le] Uguidity risk {(continued)

() Moturity of financiol liobiifties {fcontinued)

2017 <l 13 3-12 1-5
Consolidated Month Manths Months Years Total
§'000 5'000 5000 5000 5000

Mon-derbvatives
Banks & other financial insti tutions 184,130 649,791 [ 1528927 | 3534481 | 5857339
Bonds & commercial paper 773288 | 1854483 | 2372952 | 4751613 | 9752936
Other labilites 177,252 31,456 63,307 74,404 346,419
Total non derlvalives 1,135 270 2535730 3,965 186 B,360508 | 15996694
Derivathves

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

- Bought currency [274,968) [R0D.422)]  (694,560) =1 [1,778,950]
- Sald currency 1B6ATE B3g315 G694 BE7 -] 1819458

Interest Rate Swaps 3167 {5:243) [25,431] 6531 {20,976]
Cross Currency Swaps

- Pay leg 7963 460,853 ap3, 749 | 2,371,289 | 33031854

- Receive leg (4030 (232,136)| (S40,644)) [2,523,637)| {3.,500447)
Total derlvatives 18 608 52,367 [102.2100] (145.817)| (177,061}
Total 1153878 | 2588057 | 3862967 | E214691 [ 15819633

a4
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Operating assets and liabilities

This section covers the operating assets and llabiities of the consolidated entity including cash and cash
equivalents, prepayments, accounts payable and accrued expenses payable.

21, Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
$'000 £'000
Cash on hand - -
Cashin bank 38,624 148,572
Deposits at call 1,244,000 1,120,000
1,282,624 1,168,572

Al the end of financial year, the company held 5180.6 milion (2017: 51980 million) in cash and deposits at call
representing cash collections on securitised nssets transferred to special purpose entities,

Recognition ond meosurement

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months of less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafls.
Cash in bank and deposits at call earn interast at prevalling market rates. Interest is recognised in the income
staterment using the effective interest rate method.
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Operating assets and liabilities [continued)
22, Cash flow information

(@) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash from operating activities

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 017
£'on0 5'000
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 148,059 107 458
Share of profit of associates {7,934) |8,203)
Depreciation and amartizat on and write-af| 18,980 ivaax
Impairment loss on intangible assets '
Amartisation - upfrant receipts 518 |6&])
Amartisation - prepald expenses. 21,470 20,810
Nt (lozs) en sale of non-current assets {12,404]) [5,580)
Kt gain on translation of foreign currency transactions 188 745 25,927
Changes in fair value of financial instrumeants {33,511) {33,334)
Movements v operating essedr omd Tnbilities:
[Decrease) in provisien for impal rment of rocelvable {11,910} {7,123}
[Decreaso)fincroase in provision for Impalrment on residual value {10,015 3,072
[Increase) in loans and recelvables |1,640,557) 11,154,763)
[Increase) irassets under net operating lease [net of accumul ated
depraciation] |55,571) [33 360)
Decreasef{increase] in deferred tax asset 1,726 [7.907)
increase incurrent llabilitdes 70,933 2158
{Increase]/decrease in current assels |2.098) 11,348
Increasein income tax payable 533710 15851
(Decrease] in derivative fina ncial instruments at fain valwe
through profit or loss {35,350 757
MNet cash outflow from oporating activities 1 329 {1,025,117)
(b] Reconciliation of llabilities arising from financing activities
Consolidated Consalidated
2017 Cash flows Non-cash changes 2018

Forelgn  awioriisaion

exthange
5000 5'000 5000 5'000 $'000
Borrawings 15,033,273 1.331.029 116,624 48,850 16,529,776
45
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Operating assets and liabillties (continued)

23. Other assets
Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
5000 5'000
Prepayments 18,432 24,582
Other debtors 17,378 9,150
aecerued interest recelvable an cash and cash equivalents 1,304 1,184
37,114 35,016
Other assets expected to be recovered within 12 manths 16,586 26,892
Dther assets expected to be recoverad after more than 12 manths 528 8124
37,114 35,016

24, Other liabilities

Consolidated Consalidated

2018 2017

5'000 5000
Unisarned warcinty revenoe 1441 1,504
Emplayes entitlements 1D 454 9,686
Accrued intorist payable 51818 50,380
Amaunts payable to redated entities 187,950 113,484
Accounts payable 74,559 48,636
Accrued expensos (including redated parties| 130,398 107,384
Oither 14,020 15,344
AT0,671 346 ALE
Other liabilities expected to be setitled witkin 12 months 390,061 272,014
Other liabilities expected to be settied in maore than 12 months 20,610 74,404
470,671 I46A1E
Mumber of employees at end of the reporting period 717 6a7

Employee entithements

{a} $hort-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the end of
each reporting period ane recognised in ather payables in respect of employess’ services up (o the reporting
date and are meadured at the amaunts espected to be pald when the labdity & settled, Liabilities for nan-
accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave i5 taken and measured at rates paid or payable,

{bh Other lang-term employes benelit abligations

The liabifities for long service leave are not expected 1o be settled whally within 12 menths after the end of the
period in which the employees rendered the related service. They are therefore recognised in the provision for
employee benelits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of each reporting period. Consideration is given at expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected luture payments
are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with lerms to maturity
and currency that mateh, as closely as possibie, the estimated future cash flows.

a7
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)
24. Other llabllities (continued)
[b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations (continued)

The obligations are presented as current liabilites in the balance sheet if the consolidated entity does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlernent for at bzast twelve months after the reporting date regardless of when
the actual settiement is expected Lo oocur.

[e] Retirernent banafit abligation

All employees of the consolidated entity ane entitled to bensfits on retirement, disability or death according to
the consolidated entity's suparannuation plan, The consalidated entity has a defined contribution plan. The
defined contribution plan receives fixed contributions from the consobdated entity and the consolidated entity’s
legal and conitrectnvie abligation i limited 1o these contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expenia as thoy bocome payable. Prepaid

contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that cash refund, or a reduction in the fulure payments is
available.
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This section outlines the non-operating assets of the consolidated entity. Included in this section are the
following information:

Investment accounted for using the equity method

Property and equipment
Deferred tax asset

25. Investment accounted for using the equity method

{a}

L]

Country of Consolidated Ownership interest
Hame of entity ncorporation
2018 07 1018 o017
5'non 5'000 ] w
Maovement in carrylng amount
Linivsred
Toyota Finance New Zéaland Umited  Mew Tealand
Carrying amount at 1 Aail 64,433 62,4599 d5.45 4545
Shlruufprnﬂh-aftm' Incame Wby 7,034 2203
Dividends recelved (6.891) {ra7o)
Nat exchange differences on 1848 a5
translation of foreign associate entity
Carryimg amountat 31 March 67,331 54,439

The principal sctivities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:
- to finance mator vekicle scouisitions in the form of lessing, term purcha se, consumer and

commercial losns;

- o prolde bailment facilities and commercial loans to Teyota dealers,

- the marketing of vehicle and finance related insurance products;
- {he provision of retail finarnce and related producis lo pleasure boats; and

- the provision of onsecured persomal loans.

Investments in associntes are accounted for in the consodidated financial statements uaing the equity method

of account ng and are carried atcost.

e lidated lidate-d
2018 017
5'000 5'000
Share of assodates” profits
Profit befose incams ax 11,054 11,436
InCOme [ Eagense (3,160} (3.233)
Profit alter Incoms 7,934 5,203
49

154/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Mon-operating assets [continued)

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method {continued)

e} Summarised finamcal Information of assodates

Consalidated entity's chare of:
Assals Liabilitias Ravenues Profit
$'000 $'000 4'ooa $'000
Consalidated 2018
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited 606,553 538,615 60,209 7.934
Consolidated 2017
Toyoia Finance Mew Zealand Limited 482,133 417,087 56,668 8103
Consolidated
201E 2017
5000 5000
[d] Share of associates expenditure oodmm R montd
Lease pommitmaents 2074 2,790

Principles of consolidation

Associates are all entities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not contral, generally
sccompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for in the consolidated Mnancial statements wsing the equity method of accounting, after inftially
being recognised at cost.

The ponsolidated entity's share of its associates’ post-acguisition profits or losses |s recognised in profit or loss,
and s share of podl-acquisilion moverments in reserves 15 recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movemnents are adjusted against the carrying amaunt of the investment, Dividends
receivable from associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the
carrying amount of the investrment.

When the consalidated entity’s share of losses in an associate equals or cxceeds its interest in the assocate,
imcluding any other unsecwred long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further lasses,
unless it has incurred obligntions or made payments on behalf of its assoclate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the consolidated entity’s interest in assoclates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impalrment of the asset iransferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessany to ensure consistency with the policics acopted by the consolidated entity,

50
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

25. Investment accounted for using the equity methed (continued)

Forermgn currency transietion

{a) Functiagnal and presentation currency

Iterms included in the financial statements of each of the conselidated entities are measured using the currency
of the primary econamic enviranment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are présented in Australian dodlars, which 15 the company™s Tunctional and presentation

CUTTENCY.

COn consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the trantaion of the net investmant in the foreign
antity from functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive income,

{b) Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated inte the functional currency wiing the exchange rates provailing ot
the dates of the tramsactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translatbon at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabdities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profil or loss.

26. Property, plant and equipment

Accurnulated
Cost Dapreciation Carrying Value
Consolidated 2018 $'000 $'000 $'000
Leaschald improvements BADT 7925 482
PMant and equipment 24,003 21861 2142
Iotor vehicles B,969 1,140 5,829
35,379 30926 BA453
Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Carrying Value
Consalidated 2017 %'000 5'000 4'000
Leasehold i mprovements B.A04 7.537 [
Plant and equipment 22,732 20,682 2,050
Moftor vehicles 6.R9E DE 5,914
38,024 29,203 8832

51
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26. Property, plant and equipment [:pnlinued]

Consalidated 2018

Carrying valus at 1 April
Additions
Dispasals
Depraciation

Carrying valus ot 31 March

Cansalidated 2017

Carryimgvaluerat § April
Additions
Disposals
Depreciabon

Carrying value at 31 Marich

Leasehold Plant and
improvements equipment Mator vehides Tatals
5'000 4000 £'000 £%000
B&3 2,050 5,913 B.B31
3 1,271 B.AB1 7.755
4 a 14,902} {4,902
| 389 {1,179] {1,664} 3,232}
a82 2,142 5829 5453
Leasghald Plant and
Impravamaents equipmant Motar vehicles Totals
57000 5'000 5'000 £'000
1,815 2,112 6,140 10,187
7 933 5.981 6,987
= - [4.5640] [4.560]
[954) [1,181) [1.647] [3.78E]
BER 2050 5914 B.832

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included

in profit or o,

Recognition ond measurement

Praperty and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expanditure that (5 directly attributable ta the acguisitien of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a soparate asset, as appropriate,
anly when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the consolidated
entity and the cost of the item can be measured rediably. Al other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial period in which they ane incurred.

Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated using the strakgnt Bne method to allocate their cost, net
of thelr residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset Class

Property and equipment
Motor vehicles
Leaschold improvements

Method Estimated Useful Life
Straight line 3-5 yeors
Straight line 1- Iyears
Straight line Unexpired partion of lease or useful
Iife of assot whichever s shorter

Thie assets’ residual values amd useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written cown immediately 1o i recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

52
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

27, Intangible assets

Software Cost Amoriisation Carrying Value
5'000 $'o00 $'000
Cansolidated 2018 154,087 128831 23,45
Consolidated 2017 151,085 117510 33,575
Consalidated Consalidsted
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Carryirg valueat 1 April 335715 40,096
Additions a9 20,057
Disposals - =
Amartisation expense (12.363] [15,749)
Wirlte-olf 13,385]) |7 E51)
R&ED Cialm = |29 TE)
Careyirg value a1 31 March 25156 33,575
Recognition and measurement

Software consists of capitalised IT development casts being internally generated intangible assots. These consist
of system software purchased and customised to the needs of the entity as well as internally developed software
projects.

Capitalised software is recognised when it Is probable that the project (i} will be completed considering its
commercial and technical feasipdlity, (i) will contribute to future period financial benefits through revenue
generation and/or cost reductions; and (Iil) [ts costs can be measured rellably. The expenditure capitalised
comprises all directly attributable costs, inclugding costs of materials, services and direct labour. Capitalised
computer software development is amartised fram the point a1 which the asset 15 ready for use on a straight
line basis over its useful life, which varies fram 3 to 10 years.

Impairment af assets

Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events ar changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recaverasle, An impalrment boss is recognrised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less eosts bo resell and volue in use, For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
lewels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
fram ather asset groups [cash generating units),
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Non-operating assets (continued)

28. Deferred tax assels

Comsnfidated Consalidated
108 2017
5°000 5'000
Deferred tax asset balances comprise temporary differences
attributable to:
Armgunts recognised in the 8a lance Sheet
Prewision for impairmant of loans and advances 50,401 56,977
Financlal Initruments 10910 LEFLY]
Acciund edpensds 30,456 26411
Sundry lters 4,471 3768
Total amount recognised in the Balante Sheet 96,238 86,833
Daeferred tax liability balances comprise temporary differences.
attributable to:
Amdiints recogrised |n the Balance Sheet
Assets fimanced under lpaie 74 066 B4, 241
Sardry ilems 5,914 45618
Total smount recagnised in the Dalsnce Sheet 79,990 88559
Met deferred o msets 16248 17,974
Gross delerred tax sisets openi ng balance £6.833 TA.B42
Movement in temporary differences diring the year
Provision for impalrment of Inans and advance [6.576) [1,215)
Financial Instrumentt 11234 9.4968
ACCrued pupenses A 045 BAO
Sundry Hems 102 (1,023
Gross delerred Lo aviels dosing balanoe 96,238 85,833
Gross deferred tax liabilities cpening balance 66855 63,775
Movement in temporary differences during the year
Aspets Tinanced under lease B BEIS K-t
Sundry iDems 1,306 [4,830]
Gross deferred tax liabities dosing balanos 79,9490 62,859
Mot deferrad tax angaly 16,248 17,974
Deferrad 1ax asset | (liabilities) enpected 10 be setid ed within 12 months {12.738) (4.684)
Deferred tax asiet [ fliabilities ) expecied to be settfed beyond 12 manths 19,046 12658
16248 _ 17574

Refer to Note & Income tax expense for further Infermation on income tax.
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Unrecognised items

This section provides information about ltems that are not recognised in the financial statements as they do
not satisfy the recognitien criteria but are relevant for the understanding of the financial performance of the
consolidated entity.

29. Contingent liabilities

The campany, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corparation Australia Limited GST Group [GST Group), is jointhy
and severally liable for 100% of the goods and services tax (G5T) payable by the GST Group. The GST Group had
a net G5T payable as at 31 March 2018 of $59.4 million [2017: $52.8 million}.

The company, in association with ather Australian incorporated entities with a commaon ewner, implemented
the income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited as
thie Head Entity. Under the income tax consolidation legislation, income tax consolidation entities are jointly and
sowerally hable for the income tax liability of the consolidated Income tax group unless an income tax sharing
agreement has been entared into by member enatitics. At thi date of signing this Tinandal repart an income tax
sharing agreement has been executed, The directors believe the assets of the Head Entity are sufficient 1o meet
the income tax liabilities as they fall due.

The range of Toyota Extra Care warranty contracts, offered by the company since August 2003, provide an
extendad warranty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium payment, The risk of claims has been
fully insured with third party insurers. The directors consider the insurance of risk is sullicient to meet any claims
which may eventuate.

Afully maintained operating lease is offered under the company’s current portfolio of products, Fully maintained
operating leases require the company to provide agreed senvices at the company's expense, ptonthly rental
includes a pre-determined charge for such services. The actual cost of such services is expensed periodically
during the term of the leases and recognised in the income statement in reference to the stage of completion
method,

30. Commitments

{a] Lease commitments

Consolidated Consoldated

2018 017
57000 £°000
Operating leases
Aggregate amount contracted but not provided for in the
accounts are as follows:
= Premises 13,831 11,252
Due wilin one year 4,328 4,391
Due after one year bul no later than five years 5166 6861
Duwe after five yebrs 4,337 -
13,831 11,252

Thie company leases vartous offices under non-cancellable operating leases, The leases have varying Lerms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights, On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.
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Unrecognised items (continued)

30. Commitments (continued)
[b) Capital commitments

Consolidated Consolidated

201E 017
5'000 5'000
Expenditures contracted for at the end of each reporting period
but not recognised as Habllites Is as follows:
Intangible assets 13,407

31. Subsequent events

Please refer to note 16 for the final dhvidend recommended by the directors, to be pald on or before 30 June
2018.

The directors are not aware of any other matter or droumstance not otherwise dealt with in the repart ar

financial statements that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity,
the reswlts of those operations, or the state of affairg of the consolidated entity in subsequent financial yoars.
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Other disclosure matters

This section covers other information that is not directly related to specific line items In the financial
statements, including Information about subsidiaries, related party transactions, parent entity information
and other statutory disclosures.

32. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assats, liabilities, and results of the Tollawing subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting palicy described in note 2(b):

Ownership interest
Mame ol entity Country of Class of 2018 017
Incorporation shares % ]
TRA {Wholesale] Pry. Limited* Australia Ordinary 100 100

“iveestment value of %2 has been rounded fo nil. This subsidary has been granted melief fram the asceisity to prepane
financial statements in accordance with ASIC Instrament 20064785 issued by the Australian Securities and Imvestment
Commission. For further information, refer to note 36 The proportion of the pwnsership intenest b equal 1o the prapeion
ol voting power held,

Units owned
Mame of trust 2018 2017
% %
Southern Cross Toyola 2009-1 Trust*™ 100 100
King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust*™® oo 100

" reesiment valee of 510 has been rounded (o Snil
33. Related party transaction

This note shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the cansolidated entity and the
impact thiy had en the financal perfarmance and position of the entity.

[a] Entities in the wholly owned group

Thie ultimate Australian parent entity is Toyota Finance Australia Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Toyota
Financial Services Corporation, which is 3 wholly owned subsidiary of the uitimate parent entity, Toyota Motor
Corporatien incorporated in Japan,

{b) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 32,

(x) Associates

Investments in assoclates are set out in note 25,

LT
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

33. Related party transaction [continued)
{d) Key management personnel
{i} Key management persannel compensation

Consofidated Consolkdated

2018 017
5 5
Shart-term emplayes benefits 2,575,000 2,744,188
2575000 2,744 188

i) Equity instrument disclosures relaling to key monogement persorne!

Options over issued ordinary shares af the ultimate chief entity, belng Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan, granted
during or since the end of the financial year to any directors or the five most highty remunerated officers of the
company and consolidated entity as part of their remuneration are enumerated bolow, These options were
part af Toyota Maotor Corporation Glabal incentive Plan of 1 August 2008, An option has a right to acguire 100
comman shares

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Unexercized Options Unexercised Options
Directors
1. R. Chandler, Managing Director 20 20
Shares under option

Issued ordinary shares of the ultimate chief entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Jagan under oplion at the
date of this report are as follows:

lssue
Date price  Balanoeat  Ewercised Granted  Balance at
options Date Expiry date of start of the duringthe duringthe end of the
granted ewercisable shares period periad perliod period
2Aug 2010 1Aug 2012 31 Jul 2018 [} 2,000 - - 2,000

[A] The pxescie prics of optlons is based on the price equal 1o 1025 timei the cloding price af Toyots Motor Codgaration pomman vhiied
oan the Todyo Stock Exchange as 41 tbe dute the options wene granbed

fiii] Loans to key management personnel

Mo loans to key management personnel were recognised as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

163/260



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05954)
Oooooooa

Other disclosure matters (continued)

33. Related party transaction {continued)
le} Transactlons and balances with related parties

Trantactions with relabed parties are set out balow. These are included in the consolidaled entity"s Consokidated
Statement of Comprehensive ncome and Consalidated Statement of Financaal Pasition for the period

Consolidated Consolidated
2018 2017
4000 $'000
Net Financing Income
Affiliate finance income T4, 466 21643
Interest expense on loans fromafiliated entity 1773} [2,252)
Credit suppart fees pald to parententity [12.917) {11,010}
Delot issuance fees pald o affiliated entity {113 1168]
Delnt issuance lees pald to parent entity |187) .
Seavice fee paid 1o afliliated ertity |448) (33
Expenies
Marketing expenses paid 10 affiliated entity 1,102 -
Security shared serdces lee 10 a1
Consulting expenses pald o parent entity 130 .
ASFCLE
Loans and receivalies
Deferred finance | noome from affillates* [38,585) |36, BRY|
ey nssets
Accounts receivable from affiliates® 3244 4,149
fccounts recevable lrom parent entity® 0 E
Liohilities
Interest bearing loany payable to afiliates - 392 567
Hon-interest baaring loans payahble to affiliares 55,454 36,706
Accounts payableto afiliates® 145 E37 71,235
Accrued interest pavabie to affiliates . 1,534
Accounts payable to parent entity® 6,859 5,543
Accrued eapenses payable o alfliates 485 i62

Mo bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful debts were recognised in relation to any receivable due
fram related parties as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

® Mon interest bearing
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
34, Parent entity information
TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

Paramnt Parent
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Aoty
Cash and cash equivalents 1,2B2 624 1,268572
Loans and receivables 15,509,768 13,857,261
htator vehicles under operating lease 1,253,579 1,175,133
Derivative financial instruments 360,648 400,734
Investrments in associates 4264 4,284
Intangibleassets 25,256 A3 575
Property, plant and equl pment 8453 8,832
Deferred tax assets 16,248 17,9714
Other assets BE43. 706 EB7.024
Total Assets 19,310,656 17,653,385
Lizbilitles
Bue to banks and other financial institutions 2037157 2,564 367
Bandi and commercial paper 11,414,000 9,322,669
Red ated party liabilities 3,891,300 3,958,245
Derivative financial instruments 135265 192,377
Cithe liabilities 470,671 346418
Total Liabikities 17 948394 16,424,076
Nat Ascets 1,362,262 1,229,313
Equity
Contributed sgquity 120,000 120,000
Retained earnings 1,242 262 1,109313
Total Equity 1362262 1,229,313

As a1 31 March 2018, current assets and current liabilities amounted to 58,147 million and 59,766 million
respactively (2017: 57,765 million and 57,855 million respectively].

&0
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
34. Parent entity information [continued)
TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALLA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Farant Farant

2018 2017

5000 4000
Interest and simllar revenue 1,094,412 1,054,980
Interest expense and similar charges {898.071) 1B63.098)
Met finandng income 196,341 191,882
Dther incoms 210,526 191,293
Met operating income 406,867 383175
Bad and doubiful debts expense (13.643) {39,566)
Employee benefits eepense [111,018} 193 817
Depreciation, amarkisstion and wrile-off {18,980} (22,382}
ITand commumnication cxpenso {17,349} (£2,937)
Sales and market ng expense {11,254) [9,237)
Ocoupancy [7.227) 6, 706)
Other expenses |26,190) |18,179)
Profit belore income tax 201,106 175351
Income tax expenss |61,366) (46, 754)
Profit after income tax 135,840 128,597

(3] Guarantees entered into by the parent entity
The company has no financlal guarantee in relation to securitisation of loans and receivables.

(k) Contingent Eabilities of the parent entity
Refier to note 249 = Contingent liabilities

¢} Contractual commitments by the parent entity
Refer o note 30 - Commitmanis

61
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35. Auditor's remuneration

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the avditor of the parent entity,
its related practices and non-related awdit finms:

Consolidated Consolidated

2018 2017
§ 5

PricewaterhouseCoopers - Australian firm
Audit or review of the financial reports 527,276 S62,0587
Other audit-related work 487 ,0B3 158,035
Other assurance sérvices 298 853 329,203
Total audit and other assurance services 1,313,212 1,049,296
Taxation 44,833 15337
Advisory Services - 2
Total remuneraton 1,358,044 1,074,633
Ralated practices of PricowaterhouseCoopers-austr alian firm
(inchuding owerseas PricowaterhouseCoopers firms)
Other assurance sericos 105,764 105,199

36. Deed of cross guarantes

Toyata Finance Australia Limited and TFA (Whalesale] Pty Limited are parties to a deed of cross guarantes under
which cach company guarantess the debts of the others. By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned entities
hawe been relieved from the requirement (o prepare a financial report and a directors’ report under ASIC
Instrument 2016785 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,

The abowve companies represent 3 "Clased Group” for the purposes of tha Lagislative Instrumant, and a3 thore
are no other parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that #re controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Limited,
they also represent the "Extended Closed Group®.

The consolidated financial statements cover the entities which are parthes to the deed of cross guarantee,
Consequently, the consolidated financial statements reflect the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolldated balance sheet, compeising the company and the conirfelled entities which are a party
to the Deed, after eliminating 2ll transactions between the parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, al 31 March
2018,
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
In the directors’ opinlen:

[a} the financial staterments and notes set out on pages 6 1o B2 are in accordance with the Corporotions Act
1001, including:

fij complying with Accounting Stondards, the Corporotions Regulations 2001 ond other mandatory
professional reporting requirements; end

i} giwing a trae and fair view of the consalidated entity’s firancial position as at 31 March 2018 and
of its performance for the year ended on thot dote; ond

{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the carmpany will be able 15 pay it3 debts 83 and whin thiey
become due and payable; and

{c) @t the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to befieve that the members of the
Extended Clpsed Group (dentified in note 36 will be able 1o meet any obligatkons or liabilities to which
they are, or may becomne, subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee described in note 36,

Mote 2(a) confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
s Issued by the Internat/lonal Accounting Standards Board

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

For and on behalf of the Board

BA KO

Sydney
01 June 2018
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
( )| 25,601,911 | 27,234,521 | 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510
( ) 2,441,080 2,892,828 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429
( ) 1,823,119 2,173,338 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983
( ) 2,892,501 3,294,275 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256
( )| 15,218,987 | 17,647,329 | 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076
( ) 41,437,473 | 47,729,830 | 47,427,597 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249
() 4,564.74 5,334.96 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65
() 575.30 688.02 741.36 605.47 842.00
() 574.92 687.66 735.36 599.22 832.78
() 34.9 35.2 35.3 35.9 37.2
() 13.7 13.9 13.8 10.6 13.7
() 10.1 12.2 8.0 10.0 8.1
( ) 3,646,035 3,685,753 4,460,857 3,414,237 4,210,009
( ) 4,336,248 3,813,490 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092
( ) 919,480 306,045 423,571 375,165 449,135
( ) 2,041,170 2,284,557 2,939,428 2,995,075 3,052,269
) 338,875 344,109 348,877 364,445 369,124
1 [ 85,778] [ 85,848] [ 86,843]| [ 86,005]| [ 84,731]|
)
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
11,042,163 | 11,209,414 | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443
1,838,450 2,125,104 2,284,001 1,801,736 2,238,140
1,416,810 1,690,679 1,810,370 1,529,911 1,859,312
397,049 397,049 635,401 635,401 635,401
3,447,997 3,417,997 3,337,997 3,262,997 3,262,997
— — 47,100 47,100 47,100
8,920,439 | 10,184,271 | 10,859,443 | 11,365,784 | 12,040,947
13,609,725 | 15,128,623 | 16,100,209 | 16,592,167 | 17,522,303
2,812.17 3,235.44 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72
165 200 210 210 220
( 65) ( 75) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
— — 52 105 158
« - « - ( 26.0) ( 52.5) (79.0)
447.09 535.22 581.08 506.96 628.31
446.81 534.95 575.64 500.65 620.85
65.5 67.3 67.4 68.5 68.7
17.3 17.8 17.2 13.8 15.9
13.0 15.7 10.2 11.9 10.9
36.9 37.4 36.1 41.4 35.0
68,240 70,037 72,721 73,875 74,890
[ [ 9,571]| [ 9,947 [ 10,371]| [ 10,700]| [ 10,905]
)
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@

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
1,403,819 1,645,393 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884
297,528 367,586 330,190 215,447 280,769
193,690 235,090 232,719 148,687 509,930
291,338 383,235 82,594 117,191 439,270
1,707,831 2,091,538 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310
18,595,330 | 22,079,002 [ 21,379,657 | 22,188,626 | 22,669,700
( ) | 1,077,281.39 | 1,319,596.49 | 1,372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41 | 1,721,667.31
() 123,330.69 | 149,691.36 |  148,181.83 94,674.94 |  324,692.91
() = = - - =
() 9.1 9.4 10.1 10.2 11.9
() 12.5 12.5 11.0 6.7 20.5
() — — — — —
) 9,130 9,463 9,670 10,172 10,364
(1,255) (1,380) (1,536) (1,548) (1,450)

(

)
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123,457 114,146 41,846 39,854 58,411
116,150 107,950 30,975 28,947 47,297
110,478 101,148 27,192 26,160 42,983
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
430,039 532,181 556,311 581,408 624,560
438,829 542,196 562,541 589,136 633,111
273,823.53 338,861.06 354,225.54 370,206.23 397,682.51
70,345.90 64,405.56 17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48
97.9 98.2 98.9 98.7 98.6
29.5 21.0 5.0 4.6 7.1
89 87 86 79 73
(13) (14) an (18) (16)

(

)
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( )
Cologne, Germany 30.000 100
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 114,500
St Leonards, ( )
New South Wales, 120.000 100
Australia ’
( 86.8
Bangkok, Thailand (0'1)
15,100 )
3,100,000 100
38
)
Sandton, Gauteng, ( ) 33.3
South Africa 4,695 (33.3)
( )
3,746,104 33.4
5
( )
)
( )

10
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2018 31
)
1,908
3,376
719
4,288
C ) 73
10,364 (1,450)
) (
) ( )
)
C )
@
2018 31
) ) ) C )
73 (16) 44.7 7.7 10,610
) ( )
( ) )
(©)
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986
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9,788
2,496 603
5,099 3,612
584 185
167 472 183
74 288
1,023
418
70
494
22 6,697 4,810
2,767 861
19 9,363 396
2,228 10 352
7,333 4,414
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) )
1,543,219 7.0
12,834,923 2.7
1,380,701 5.9
4,655,193 16.8
20,414,037 2.4
)
) )
164,289 4.8
1,372,895 8.1
98,635 7.7
343,063 16.8
1,978,884 9.2
)
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( )
2,148,565
2018 31
( ) )
4,350,779 100.0
4,350,779 100.0
2018 31
( )
)
1,908
1,001 | 11,866 425 | 13,293 ¢76)
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S)
2018 31
( )
( )
(Plano 744 | 10,879 2,85 | 23,483 §%Sg§
Texas, U.S.A.)
()
2,380
)
€y
( 2018 2019 31 )
1,709,856
23,756

)
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)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
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1,570,500 _ _
)
(©)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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(2018 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2018 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2018 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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1959 14

1981

2013
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1948 10 23
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1957 12 26
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@
( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
289,745 389,639
, 14,271,039 , 14,721,212
1,171,609 1,342,045
720,108 570,787
530,361 724,128
157,152 164,242
16,825,712 17,583,571
C ) , 4,485,848 , 4,350,779
9,701 9,262
4,495,549 4,360,042
38,910 38,017
450,768 468,002
377,684 220,065
828,453 688,068
5,362,913 5,086,128
22,188,626 22,669,700
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( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
730,858 919,723
) 1,857,561 1,629,396
2,199,567 2,321,393
3,762,251 3,891,614
1,088,421 1,138,967
9,638,660 9,901,095
6,174,529 6,253,109
, 3,061,079 3,046,051
971,403 646,097
51,103 90,036
10,258,115 10,035,293
19,896,775 19,936,389
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
2,035,293 2,545,223
2,273,718 2,783,648
5,077 560
4,065 2,667
13,908 81,877
4,766 79,770
22,898 29,432
2,291,850 2,733,310
22,188,626 22,669,700
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( )
( 2016 ( 2017

2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
1,812,554 1,978,884
1,228,091 1,325,249
584,463 653,635
395,160 403,990
189,303 249,645
— 1,042
4,544 3,658
21,335 24,939
2,287 2,433
28,167 32,073
924 732
906 —
193 216
2,023 949
215,447 280,769
— 361
— 361
215,447 281,130
57,671 66,089
4,799 298,860
62,471 232,770
152,976 513,901
4,289 3,971
148,687 509,930
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2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
152,976 513,901
17,292 5,637
213 799
18,743 68,653
38 460
35,785 74,630
117,191 439,270
113,414 434,805
3,776 4,465
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2016 2017 a1 )

( )

78,525 159,900 1,886,139 2,124,564

148,687 148,687

467 467

— — 149,154 149,154

78,525 159,900 2,035,293 2,273,718
22,369 4,280 3,855 30,506 18,597 2,173,667
148,687
467
17,292 215 17,764 35,272 4,300 30,971
17,292 215 17,764 35,272 4,300 118,182
5,077 4,065 13,908 4,766 22,898 2,291,850
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2017 2018 31 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,035,293 2,273,718
509,930 509,930
— — 509,930 509,930
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
5,077 4,065 13,908 4,766 22,898 2,291,850
509,930
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 68,469
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 441,460
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 29,432 2,733,310

209/260




(

(

(

(

(

)

)

48

31

12 31

)

)

)

210/260

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn



(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

)
(IFRS)

2019

ASU 2016-13

2019 12 15

211/260

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

2018

oOoOooodn

2021



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
1,114,614 1,201,420
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
34,057 38,348
19,434 20,086
581 641
581 641
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
2,823,854 3,117,270
40,552 55,355
11,925 11,954
2,876,331 3,184,580
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
3,073,455 3,316,588
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
2,136,916 2,016,371
557,383 618,786
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
— 6,526
1,065,117 1,033,111
984,608 899,192
13,834 16,494
43,201 43,018
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2,025,768 1,906,199

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
1,964,468 1,830,019
557,383 618,786
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78,480 88,143
108,252 99,850
(2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
( )13,924 ( )2,860
(2016 (2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
2,636 3,380
24,454 4,567
27,090 7,947
9,797 2,309
17,292 5,637
1,864 293
1,570 1,493
293 1,199
80 400
213 799
18,743 68,653
38 460
35,785 74,630
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(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
538,402 580, 852
376,359 421,497
71,509 79,856
843,253 922,493
@
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
120,382 151,267
107,063 131,782
81,815 108,781
37,887 48,564
13,042 14,990
1,485 1,706
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
199,594 218,521
149,610 166,135
114,115 115,233
51,351 55,494
19,514 22,061
4,216 3,405
( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
724,938 700,877
694,583 664,387
1,419,521 1,365,264
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(2017 31 )

( )
(6H) 289,745 289,745 —

@ 14,271,039

« ) 130,633
14,140,406 14,255,936 115,530

) ¢ ) 795,249

« ) 23,824
771,425 835,067 63,642
(O 1,121,951 1,121,951 —
16,323,528 16,502,700 179,172
[€H) 730,858 730,858 —
[©) 3,762,251 3,762,251 —
®) « ) 8,374,096 8,509,343 135,246
“ C ) 4,918,640 4,933,833 15,192
17,785,847 17,936,286 150,439

« D

106,858 8,348 98,509
524 3,684 3,160
107,382 12,033 95,349
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N o S
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(€H) 389,639 389,639 —
@ 14,721,212
« ) 133,470
14,587,741 14,634,539 46,797
@) ¢ ) 920,548
« ) 28,153
892,395 959,946 67,550
(O] 986,736 986,736 —
16,856,513 16,970,861 114,348
€)) 919,723 919,723 —
() 3,891,614 3,891,614 —
®) « ) 8,574,502 8,624,779 50,276
) « ) 4,675,447 4,685,542 10,094
18,061,288 18,121,659 60,371
« )
8,999 40,607 49,607
227 917 690
8,772 41,525 50,297

e lalale)
N o S\
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289,745 — —
6,029,882 7,486,870 580,218
280,293 504,156 4,990
155,119 109,183 17,492
26,391 6,672 21,928
379,786 374 —
561,298 116,231 39,421
7,161,218 8,107,257 624,631

(2018 31 )

)
389,639 — —
6,109,695 7,775,730 654,504
322,978 582,663 4,494
174,561 138,254 12,978
4,200 4,894 22,703
288,468 — 361
467,230 143,148 36,044
7,289,544 8,501,542 695,043
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(2017 31 )
(¢ )
730,858 — —
3,762,251 — —
2,201,095 5,438,320 759,014
1,857,561 2,933,790 127,288
8,551,766 8,372,110 886,302
(2018 31 )
( )
919,723 — —
3,891,614 — —
2,322,871 5,714,413 560,609
1,629,396 2,858,146 187,904
8,763,606 8,572,560 748,513

223/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

(2017 31 )
( )
6,157 3,094 3,062
10,674 10,453 220
27,616 27,491 125
125,549 120,423 5,125
169,998 161,463 8,534
41 4 —
271,254 272,027 772
27,540 27,555 15
653,116 653,147 31
951,952 952,771 818
1,121,951 1,114,234 7,716
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( )
5,350 2,118 3,232
1,803 1,669 134
10,331 10,316 14
9,434 9,179 255
26,920 23,283 3,637
52 52 —
322,258 324,746 2,487
21,237 21,435 197
616,267 617,597 1,329
959,815 963,830 4,014
986,736 987,113 377

(2016 2017 31 )
( )
43,661 26,103 _

( 2017 2018 31 )
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@
( )
26,251 — 119 119
453,568 — 1,423 1,423
968,592 737,553 100,191 100,191
373,054 305,268 10,285 10,285
484,553 309,157 30,133 30,133
1,590,934 1,080,184 63,827 63,827
3,896,956 2,432,164 17,819 17,819
)
@
( )
4,871,098 4,026,148 7,838 7,838
10,684,777 6,701,472 18,270 18,270
53,064 27,372 177 177
3,365 — — —
179,685 89,842 236 236
15,791,991 10,844,835 26,168 26,168
)

226/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

ooooooo
@
( )
40,874 13,330 3,162
40,874 13,330 3,162
)
@
( )
4,000 4,000 144
7,000 5,000 15
71,000 31,000 393
82,000 40,000 522
)

227/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
(2018 31 )
@
( )
16,931 — 124 124
410,392 — 5,609 5,609
848,012 747,395 20,982 20,982
389,860 373,569 2,245 2,245
418,852 250,504 20,073 20,073
336,736 236,954 18,258 18,258
1,666,396 1,080,667 24,326 24,326
4,087,182 2,689,001 10,465 10,465
)
@
( )
4,897,532 3,911,401 57,155 57,155
10,805,452 6,777,954 87,293 87,293
134,442 89,150 56 56
97,890 — 60 60
15,935,317 10,778,507 30,141 30,141
)

228/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

ooooooo
@
( )
12,623 2,719 822
12,623 2,719 822
)
@
( )
34,000 34,000 219
5,000 5,000 3
104,500 104,500 120
143,500 143,500 95
)

229/260



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
(
1,898
1,941
€))
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
394,616 411,080
397,339 403,946
2,723 7,134
@
28.8 (2016 2017 31 )
27.7 (2017 2018 31 )
(©)
o
(€))
( 2016 ( 2017
2017 31 2018 31 )
26,322 28,771
1,535 1,730
580 608
599 1,038
931 1,337
28,771 31,408
@

230/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
(©)
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

20,154 22,088

13,535 16,534

6,619 5,553

8,616 9,320

15,236 14,873

15,258 14,873

22 —

15,236 14,873
O]

( 2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )

1,535 1,730

676 951

2,212 2,681
©)
®)

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
0.1 3.8 0.1 3.5

231/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
)
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
49,755 35,563
7,593 104,177
41,181 67,887
98,529 207,628
2,528 6,474
96,001 201,153
944,419 748,731
69,521 32,172
1,013,941 780,903
« ) 917,940 579,750
) )
( ) ( )
— 66,592 — 73,237
- 9,208 - 16,898
— 22,337 — 23,789
— 971,403 — 646,097
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
30.7 30.7
— 113.3
2.2 2.4
0.5 2.2
29.0 82.8
2017 12 22 35 21
308,313
321,699 13,386

232/260



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OoOoOoOoOodno
)
( 2016 2017 31 )
( )
) )
156,794 | 1,270,547 | 91,588 | 1,518,930 | 293,624 | 1,812,554 — | 1,812,554
202 4,064 593 4,860 | 15,984 20,844 | 20,844 —
156,996 | 1,274,612 | 92,182 | 1,523,791 | 309,608 | 1,833,399 | 20,844 | 1,812,554
22,469 68,779 | 11,692 102,941 | 90,708 193,650 4,346 189,303
1,442,503 |13,196,365 1,303,814 (15,942,683 (3,985,813 (19,928,497 — 19,928,497
835 176,622 | 32,243 209,701 | 111,057 320,759 | 10,509 310,249
5,061 629,023 | 24,419 658,503 | 23,343 681,847 25 681,872
6,395 68,487 4,711 79,594 | 28,657 108,252 — 108,252
)
€Y 4,346
) 10,509
9,154 320,112
73,882 288,592

233/260



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OoOoOoOoOodno
( 2017 2018 31 )
( )
) )
164,289 | 1,372,895 | 98,635 | 1,635,821 | 343,063 | 1,978,884 — | 1,978,884
300 4,563 598 5,462 | 16,536 21,999 | 21,999 —
164,590 | 1,377,458 | 99,234 | 1,641,283 | 359,600 | 2,000,884 | 21,999 | 1,978,884
28,876 110,669 | 16,349 155,895 | 96,906 252,801 3,156 249,645
1,543,219 12,834,923 1,380,701 |15,758,844 |4,655,193 [20,414,037 — |20,414,037
679 220,107 | 34,687 255,474 | 126,578 382,052 | 11,509 370,543
5,197 672,731 | 25,397 703,326 | 28,295 731,621 21 731,643
6,550 57,600 3,044 67,195 | 32,654 99,850 — 99,850
)
€Y 3,156
) 11,509
9,100 355,877
82,080 335,548

234/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2016 2017 31 )
90
€Y)
)
156,794 1,220,234 435,526 1,812,554
)
@
)
6,106 4,284,283 205,159 4,495,549
10
2017 2018 31 )
90
o
)
164,289 1,316,050 498,544 1,978,884
()
@
)
3,076 4,114,807 242,158 4,360,042
10

235/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

236/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

(2016 2017 31 )
( ) ( ) )
( ) ()
9,050
635,401 100 12,590
248,130
)
( 2017 2018 31 )
( ) ( ) )
( ) ()
150,970
635,401 100 32,780
138,990
)
)

237/260

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2016 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
1,444,732 41 1,721,667 31

94,674 94 324,692 91

2016 2017

2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
148,687 509,930
148,687 509,930
1,570,500 1,570,500

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

2,291,850 2,733,310
22,898 29,432
2,268,952 2,703,878
1,570,500 1,570,500

238/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

( ) ( ) (@)
2005 449,997 479,998 [ 0.00 2017
) (99,999)
2018 1.93 2027
2012 1,003,863 1,102,520 | 1.42 [ ( ) 2017
() (325,828)
() 2018 [ 3,090 [ 2,450 36.60 2024
)
47,400 59,300
1,580 1,348
3,000 5,500
4,700 6,000
1,036 1,504
2,000 2,000
33,000 36,104
3,000 5,000
1
800
1
2007 6,920,235 6,991,983 | 0.00 2017
(1,895,565)
) 2018 [ 41,032 [ 43,394 29.48 2046
)
) 10,588 11,319
2,928 3,101
1,605 1,830
1,551 1,327
7,000 6,750
9,447 9,814
380 115
366 98
1
97
1
8,574,502
— — 8,374,096 (2.321.393) - —

239/260




(

)

17

)

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

2,322,871

1,788,527

1,326,126

1,444,889

1,154,870

240/260

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

( ) ( ) )
730,858 919,723 2.62 —
1,857,561 1,629,396 2.38 —
1,065,117 1,033,111 2.12 —
) 3,061,079 3,046,051 2.19| 2019 2036
960,650 873,088 1.96 | 2019 2022
3,762,251 3,891,614 1.65 —
)
)
1,257,388 911,868 503,185 185,705
523,441 246,874 90,985 11,787
100
@

241/260

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
@
( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
4,008 3,755
6,943 7,112
9,050 150,970
592 562
20,594 162,400
93 70
24 2
19,787 19,072
199,983 207,193
100,319 105,218
248,130 138,990
203 162
568,423 470,637
568,541 470,710
589,136 633,111

242/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd

( )
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

3,961 4,246
2,363 2,782
6,325 7,028
1,401 1,522
7,727 8,550
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
422,204 465,188
422,204 465,188
579,254 622,238
2,154 2,321
2,154 2,321
581,408 624,560
589,136 633,111

243/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

Ogoooood
( )
( 2016 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
26,433 43,661
13,420 14,749
39,854 58,411
7,649 8,388
7,649 8,388
32,205 50,022
4,227 5,262
27,977 44,760
640 662
476 412
922 1,246
— 295
10 12
2,049 2,629
1,055 —
24 92
1,080 92
28,947 47,297
28,947 47,297
3,175 4,335
388 21
2,786 4,313
26,160 42,983

244/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

OooooOodd
( 2016 2017 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 396,044 553,094 3,216 556,311
26,160 26,160 26,160
) 1,062 1,062
— — 26,160 26,160 1,062 25,097
78,525 78,525 422,204 579,254 2,154 581,408
( 2017 2018 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 422,204 579,254 2,154 581,408
42,983 42,983 42,983
) 167 167
— — 42,983 42,983 167 43,151
78,525 78,525 465,188 622,238 2,321 624,560

245/260



o

@

€Y

@

246/260

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

oOoOooodn
)
(2016 ( 2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
640 644
(2016 (2017
2017 31 ) 2018 31 )
1,139 1,835
1,151 1,072
477 748
158 138
112 121
)
(2017 31 )
( 193,580 6,402 )
(2018 31 )
( 200,381 6,812 )

247/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )
110 205
175 192
270 184
164 164
48 42
40 38
810 827
175 170
635 657
45 45
945 1,023
991 1,069
356 412
(2017 31 ) (2018 31 )

30.7 30.7

26.8 27.0

5.6 5.5

0.1 0.0

9.6 9.1

248/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

) ( )

231,900 8,116

7,280,000 5,350

829,155 4,845

8,341,055 18,312

) ( )

327,434,107 759

— 759

( ) | ( ) | ( ) | ( ) ( )| ¢ )

( )

— — — 251 180 19 70
— — — 199 196 4 2

@

®)

249/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

250/260



(

(

)

)

2017

31

2017

31

2001

APES 110

251/260

2001

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2001



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2001

http://ww.auasb.gov.au/auditors__ files/ar7.pdf.

252/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

2017

253/260



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the
Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(8 giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 March 2017 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The financial report comprises:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies

the directors declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsihilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

I ndependence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor’ s report
comprises the directors' report included in the annual financial report, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’
s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information identified above and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in thisregard.

Responsihilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for ng the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financia report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance

Standards Board website at:  http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors files/ar7.pdf. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 1 June 2017
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I ndependent auditor's report

To the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the

Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(8 giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financia position asat 31 March 2018 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The Group financial report comprises:
the consolidated statement of financial position asat 31 March 2018
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
the directors' declaration.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018, including the Directors report, but does not include the financial
report and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for ng the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as awholeis free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board website at: http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 1 June 2018
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